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TH
NOTICE OF 16  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

No�ce is hereby given that the 16th Annual General Mee�ng of the Members of India SME Asset 
Reconstruc�on Company Limited will be held through Video Conference (VC) on Wednesday, 
September 25, 2024 at 03:00 p.m. to transact the business stated herein:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors 
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo (DIN No. 07738940), who 
re�res by rota�on and being eligible, has offered himself for reappointment. (As per Ar�cle 
138, 158 and proviso to 187(iii) of AOA of the Company).

3. The Board of Directors, as approved by the members in the 12th AGM held on September 
30, 2020, is hereby authorized to decide and fix the remunera�on of Statutory Auditors of 
the Company, appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) for the 
Financial Year 2024­25.

Special Business:

4. Re­appointment of Smt Rachna Dikshit as an Independent Director of the Company
 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following 

resolu�on as a Special Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 149, 152, 160 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules made thereunder, read 
with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company 
and pursuant to the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and 
the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, and an approval / no­objec�on 
received from Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Smt Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332), who holds 
office of Independent Director,  and in respect of whom the Company has received a no�ce 
in wri�ng from a member under Sec�on 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing her 
candidature for the office of a Director of the Company, and who has submi�ed a 
declara�on that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in Sec�on 149(6) of 
the Act and being eligible, be and is hereby re­appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company for a second consecu�ve term of 3 (three) years commencing from October 09, 
2023, whose office shall not be liable to re�re by rota�on.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT MD&CEO / CFO / CS be and are hereby authorized to severally 
digitally sign and submit the necessary form(s) with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and to 
do all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be necessary and expedient to give effect 
to the aforesaid resolu�on.”
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5. Appointment of Shri Amitabh Misra as Managing Director and Chief Execu�ve Officer of 
the Company

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following 
resolu�on as a Special Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and 
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
(including any amendment(s), statutory modifica�on(s) or re­enactment(s) thereof for the 
�me being in force) or any other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons etc. for the �me being in 
force, approval of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as per the provisions of Sec�on 3(6) of 
SARFAESI Act, 2002, in accordance with the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company and 
approval of Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the members be and is hereby 
accorded to appoint Shri Amitabh Misra (DIN No. 10370703) as Managing Director and 
Chief Execu�ve Officer (MD&CEO) of the Company for the period of 3 (three) years with 
effect from December 06, 2023, on the terms and condi�ons including remunera�on set 
out in the explanatory statement annexed to the No�ce convening this Mee�ng.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (hereina�er referred to as Board which 
term shall be deemed to include any Commi�ee of the Board cons�tuted to exercise its 
powers including powers conferred by this resolu�on) be and is hereby authorized to alter 
and vary the terms and condi�ons including remunera�on of the said appointment as may 
be agreed to between the Board and Shri Misra provided that such varia�on, as the case 
may be, is within the overall limits as specified under the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or any amendments thereto.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or CFO or CS of the Company be and 
are hereby severally authorized to file necessary e­forms with Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
and to do all such act, deed, things as may be necessary on behalf of the Board and to give 
effect to aforesaid resolu�on.”

Place: Mumbai            
Date: September 03, 2024       

By order of the Board of Directors
India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

Sd/­
(Ketki Muzumdar)

Company Secretary 
M.No.A30638

Notes:­ 

1. An explanatory statement pursuant to Sec�on 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) rela�ng to special 
business set out in the No�ce is annexed herewith.

2. As required under Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs (SS­2), addi�onal informa�on of Shri Dinesh 
Kumar Namdeo, Smt Rachna Dikshit and Shri Amitabh Misra seeking appointment / re­appointment at the 
Annual General Mee�ng (AGM), is detailed as Annexure A.
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3. In accordance with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 
2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, 21/2021 
dated December 14, 2021, 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022, 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and 09/2023 
dated September 25, 2023, respec�vely (the MCA Circulars) the AGM will be held without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue and Members can a�end and par�cipate in the AGM through 
VC. In terms of the MCA circulars, the Members are requested to take note of the following: 

a) No�ce convening the AGM of the Company and the Annual Report for the financial year 2023­24, have 
been uploaded on the website of the Company, viz., www.isarc.in. No�ce and annual report are being sent 
only by email to those Members who have registered their email address with the Company.

b) Since the AGM is being held through VC, physical a�endance of the Members has been dispensed with. 
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by Members is not available and as such the Proxy Form 
and A�endance Slip are not annexed to this No�ce.

c) Pursuant to the relevant Circular, representa�ves of the Members may be appointed for the purpose of 
par�cipa�on and vo�ng in AGM. Corporate Members intending to authorize their representa�ves to a�end 
the AGM are requested to email the same to cs@isarc.in along with cer�fied true copy of the latest Board 
Resolu�on or Power of A�orney, authorizing their representa�ve to par�cipate and vote at the AGM, on 
their behalf.

d) Members are requested to send their queries, if any, on the Annual Report, to the Company Secretary at the 
designated email address i.e. cs@isarc.in not less than 5 working days before the date of Mee�ng, so that 
the requisite informa�on / explana�ons can be provided in �me.

e) Link for a�ending the AGM through VC will be shared with the members separately.

f) A�endance of Members at the AGM through VC shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum, 
under the provisions of Sec�on 103 of the Act read with the relevant Circulars.

g) All the documents referred to in this No�ce and the Statutory Registers will be made available for inspec�on 
by the Company and as such the Members are requested to send an email to cs@isarc.in

h) Since the AGM is being held through VC, the route map for the AGM venue is not a�ached.

i) Members may contact the Company to convey grievances, if any, rela�ng to the conduct of the AGM, at the 
registered office address or at the designated email address i.e. cs@isarc.in

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
se�ng out all the material facts rela�ng to the Special Business 

as set out in Item No. 4 and 5 of this No�ce.

The following Explanatory Statements, pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(Act), sets out all material facts rela�ng to the business men�oned in the accompanying No�ce 
dated September 03, 2024:

Item No.4:
Re­appointment of Smt Rachna Dikshit as an Independent Director of the Company
Smt Rachna Dikshit was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the 
Company in the Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) held in the year 2020 to hold office for a period 
of 3 (Three) years with effect from July 03, 2020.

In terms of Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), an Independent Director is eligible for 
re­appointment on passing of Special Resolu�on. The Company, being a Regulated En�ty of 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI), is required to take prior approval from RBI. As Smt. Rachna Dikshit 
completed her ini�al term on July 02, 2023, to ensure the con�nuity of her term as an 
Independent Director without interrup�on and being eligible for re­appointment as 

India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited
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Independent Director for 2nd term, Smt. Rachna Dikshit was appointed as a Director by the 
Board in its mee�ng held on July 31, 2023, in the capacity of Non­Execu�ve Independent 
Director, subject to RBI and shareholders approval and the appointment would be with effect 
from the date of approval from RBI. Approval from RBI therea�er was sought vide le�er dated 
August 01, 2023.

The said re­appointment was informed / disclosed to the shareholders in the Director's Report 
placed before the Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) held on September 29, 2023.

RBI vide its le�er no.DoR.HGG.GOV.No.S3833/18.03.001/2023­24 dated October 09, 2023 
have approved the appointment for a period of three years.

She re�red as Regional Director, RBI. During her long experience with RBI, in addi�on to 
supervisory func�ons, she has closely coordinated with other Financial Ins�tu�ons and 
Government func�onaries. She performed the role of spearheading financial literacy and 
inclusion for the unbanked and underbanked popula�on which are marginalized and interacted 
with small, medium and micro enterprises to push banking assistance. During her pos�ng as 
GM, Department of Banking Regula�on, RBI Central Office, she was responsible for Financial 
Ins�tu�ons Division and Credit Informa�on Division. She was also part of the Kapoor 
Commi�ee cons�tuted by the Governor of RBI to study Credit Flow to SSIs in 1998. 

She is the Chairperson of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and a Member of 
Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Considering the knowledge, acumen, exper�se and experience of Smt Rachna Dikshit and the 
substan�al contribu�on made by her during her tenure as an Independent Director, it is felt that 
her con�nued associa�on as an Independent Director would be in the interest of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolu�on as set out at Item No.4 of the accompanying No�ce for 
approval by the Members of the Company. As the appointment of Smt Rachna Dikshit has been 
made pursuant to the recommenda�on of NRC, the provision of Sec�on 160 for deposit of 
requisite amount for proposing candidature of person other than re�ring Director will not be 
applicable.

Smt Rachna Dikshit is interested in the Resolu�on set out at Item No.4 with respect to her 
appointment.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their rela�ves are, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
proposed Special Resolu�on.

Item No.5:
Appointment of Shri Amitabh Misra as Managing Director and Chief Execu�ve Officer of the 
Company
The members are informed that the Board in its 81st mee�ng held on January 08, 2024 has 
approved the appointment of Shri Amitabh Misra as Managing Director and Chief Execu�ve 
Officer (MD&CEO) subject to approval of RBI and approval of shareholders on the terms and 
condi�ons as men�oned in the Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) deputa�on 
le�er no. HRV No. 2024/OCT/L001305310 /Staff 83(B) dated October 20,2023, as detailed 
below:
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1. Period of deputa�on
 The deputa�on to India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited (ISARC) will be ini�ally 

for a period of 3 years from the date of pos�ng. SIDBI, however, reserves the right to recall 
the services of the officer from deputa�on prematurely depending on its organiza�onal 
requirements. The officer will be deemed to be relieved from ISARC on the date of expiry of 
the deputa�on period unless SIDBI and ISARC have decided to extend the deputa�on 
period, prior to the date of expiry.

2 Pay and allowance while on deputa�on
 During the period of deputa�on the Officer will draw pay and allowance as admissible to 

him in SIDBI from �me to �me plus a deputa�on allowance of 4% of Pay with a maximum of 
Rs.3,000/­ p.m. ISARC will reimburse the same to SIDBI. The deputa�on allowance will not 
be reckoned towards the amount payable in respect of encashment of leave. The 
approximate annual compensa�on package would be ̀  70 lakh.

3 Pay and allowances during joining �me and on reversion to SIDBI
 The pay and allowances of the officer during the period of joining, for taking up his post 

with ISARC as also reversion to SIDBI, will be paid by ISARC as per SIDBI rules.

4 Residen�al accommoda�on
 During the period of deputa�on, the officer will be eligible for residen�al accommoda�on 

provided by SIDBI, on surrender of the en�re HRA admissible, as hitherto and subject to 
the usual terms and condi�ons of allotment of Bank's flat. ISARC, however, will be required 
to pay to SIDBI, the cost, on mutually agreed terms, for providing residen�al 
accommoda�on to the officer.

5 Travelling allowance
 The expenditure/ allowance for journeys performed by the officer, for taking up his 

employment with ISARC and on reversion to SIDBI, for self and family, will be paid by ISARC, 
as per the rules of SIDBI. For journeys, if any, performed by him, while on duty with ISARC, 
travelling and hal�ng allowance will be paid by ISARC, as per the rules applicable in SIDBI.

6 RVME facility
 The officer will be eligible for RVME facility (as applicable to officers in SIDBI) from ISARC at 

its cost.

7 Medical a�en�on facili�es
 The officer will con�nue to receive medical a�en�on and hospitalisa�on facili�es for self 

and family from SIDBI as per eligibility. ISARC, however, will reimburse to SIDBI the cost / 
expenditure so incurred.

8 Provident fund / Pension Contribu�on
 ISARC will pay the employers' contribu�on to SIDBI. Accordingly, ISARC will be required to 

remit every month to SIDBI, following amounts so as to reach SIDBI before 3rd of the 
subsequent month to which it relates:

 a) 10% of the officer's pay plus special pay, if any, in SIDBI being the employees 
subscrip�on to the SIDBI Employees' Provident Fund and voluntary subscrip�on, if 
any, upto 90% thereof to be recovered from the officer out of his salary.

 b) 10% of the officer's pay plus special pay, if any, in SIDBI being the employer's 
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contribu�on.

 N.B. In the event of any delay in remi�ng the above amounts, ISARC will be required to pay 
interest calculated at the rate in force applicable to the balance in the provident fund of the 
officer to SIDBI, �ll the date of payment of the contribu�on.

9 Leave fare concession
 The officer is eligible to avail of leave fare concession once in two years in respect of self and 

family under SIDBl's rules and ISARC will pay at the end of deputa�on the cost of 
concession in propor�on to the period of deputa�on.

10 Annual Performance Appraisal Report (APAR)
 The Annual Performance Appraisal Report shall be recorded by the officer on deputa�on in 

SIDBl's Human Resource Management System (HRMS).

11 Annual Property Returns (APR)
 The Annual Property Returns shall be recorded by the officer on deputa�on in SIDBl's 

Human Resource Management System (HRMS).

12 Leave salary
 Any leave availed by the officer will be under the rules of SIDBI. SIDBI will also bear the cost 

of such leave (except casual leave) and ISARC shall make a monthly contribu�on of 12.5% 
of the total emoluments of the officer (including deputa�on allowance) while on 
deputa�on towards leave salary.

13 Bonus
 The officer will not be en�tled to receive any bonus from ISARC.

14. Gratuity
 At the end of deputa�on, ISARC will pay contribu�on towards gratuity at the admissible 

amount as per Small Industries Development Bank of India (Payment of Gratuity to 
Employees) Regula�ons, 2002 and modifica�ons, if any.

15 Compassionate gratuity
 The scheme of compassionate gratuity, as applicable in SIDBI, will also be applicable to the 

officer on deputa�on.

16 Insurance Cover
 The officer is covered under the Group Personal Accident Insurance Scheme (GPAIS) & 

Group Term Life Insurance Policy Scheme (GTLIPS). The amount of the policy will be as 
applicable for that Grade. The annual premium as applicable in respect of the officer and 
such further premia during the period of his deputa�on that would be paid by SIDBI in his 
case would be reimbursed to the bank by ISARC.

17 Other deduc�ons
 ISARC will arrange to remit to SIDBI, the amount of principal and interest recovered from 

the officer's salary towards loans and advances drawn by him from SIDBI.

18 Other facili�es/ reimbursements
 The officer will be eligible for other facili�es / reimbursements from ISARC viz, Educa�on 

Expenses, newspaper, telephone, briefcase, entertainment allowance, etc. as per SIDBI 
rules, at the cost of ISARC.



19. Arrears in Pay & Allowances
 The pay & allowances in SIDBI are presently due for revision. In case the officer opts for pay 

and allowances of SIDBI on implementa�on of the revised pay scale, the arrears payable to 
the officer for the period of his deputa�on to ISARC, shall be borne by ISARC irrespec�ve of 
whether the officer at that point of �me is on deputa�on to ISARC or not.

20. Repatria�on
 On repatria�on to the Bank, the officer will be posted in the cadre in which he would have 

been placed had he not been sent on deputa�on, irrespec�ve of the post held by him in 
ISARC.

21 SIDBI (Staff) Regula�ons, 2001
 During the period of deputa�on to ISARC, the officer will con�nue to be uncondi�onally 

governed by all the exis�ng provisions along with amendments from �me to �me 
contained in the Small Industries Development Bank of India (Staff) Regula�ons, 2001.

22 Goods and Service Tax (GST)
 ISARC shall also pay GST applicable on the reimbursements made to SIDBI for onward 

deposit to the appropriate authority. The amount of GST shall be advised by SIDBI at the 
�me of claiming all such reimbursements.

23 Incen�ve
 Officers on deputa�on shall be eligible to be considered under any Incen�ve Scheme as 

approved by the board of ISARC.

24 Disputes
 In case of dispute as to the interpreta�on of any of the terms and condi�ons of deputa�on, 

the decision of SIDBI shall be final and binding on all par�es concerned.

25 Residuary ma�ers
 Anything not covered by these terms and condi�ons shall be referred to SIDBI for decision.

Background
SIDBI vide le�er no.L000305484/SIC/ISARC dated October 26, 2023, deputed Shri Amitabh 
Misra, Deputy General Manager (DGM), SIDBI to ISARC. The Board in its 81st Mee�ng held on 
January 08, 2024 has approved the appointment with effect from the date of approval of RBI i.e. 
December 06, 2023. 

The Board or the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC), subject to the requisite 
approval(s), if necessary, is en�tled and authorized to revise at any �me, the salary and 
perquisite payable to MD&CEO such that the overall remunera�on shall not exceed the limits 
specified above.

India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited
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Addi�onal Informa�on as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

Asset Reconstruc�on Company

March 5, 2009 

As on March 31, 2024 

Total Revenue – ̀ 1808.32 Lakh

Net Profit A�er Tax – ̀ 936.67 Lakh

No

Shri Amitabh Misra is a post­graduate in Economics from 

JNU. He started his career as an execu�ve in the Stock 

Holding Corpora�on of India Ltd. (SHCIL) in 1994 and later 

moved over to SIDBI as Assistant Manager in 1996. He has 

cross func�onal experience of more than 27 years in SIDBI  

with  core  domain  exper�se  in  NPA Management, 

Project Financing, Start­up Finance, Microfinance and 

branch opera�ons, having worked in various opera�onal 

and policy areas of the Bank like Promo�on & 

Development, Direct  Credit  to  MSMEs,  opera�onal  

Audit,  NPA Management & Recovery, Human Resources, 

Risk Management and various Regional and Branch 

Offices besides MUDRA Ltd., a Subsidiary of SIDBI.

Nil

As per the terms and condi�ons men�oned above in the 

explanatory statement.

­­­

­­­

None

Not applicable as the Company has adequate Net Profit of 

` 936.67 Lakh as on March 31, 2024

­­­

­­­

As stated in the Board of Directors' report under the 

heading “Corporate Governance”, Board comprises of 

General Informa�on

Nature of Industry

Date or expected date of commencement of 

opera�on

Financial performance based on given indicators

Foreign investments or collabora�ons, if any.

Informa�on about the appointee

Background  Details  and  Job  Profile  and  his 

suitability

Details of remunera�on last drawn during the 

Financial Year 2023­24

Details of remunera�on sought to be paid

Recogni�on or rewards

Compara�ve remunera�on profile with respect to 

industry, size of the company, profile of the posi�on 

and person (in case of expatriates the relevant 

details would be with respect to the country of his 

origin)

Pecuniary rela�onship directly or indirectly with the 

Company, or rela�onship with the managerial 

personnel, if any

Other Informa�on

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

Steps  taken  or  proposed  to  be  taken  for 

improvement

Expected increase in produc�vity and profits in 

measurable terms.

Disclosures

All elements of remunera�on package such as 

salary, benefits, bonuses, stock op�ons, pension, 

etc., of all the directors,



Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modifica�on or re­enactment thereof) read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Shareholders may approve the appointment of Shri Misra as 'Managing Director & CEO' at the 
General Mee�ng by passing the Special Resolu�on. 

As the appointment of Shri Misra has been made pursuant to the recommenda�on of NRC, the 
provision of Sec�on 160 for deposit of requisite amount for proposing candidature of person 
other than re�ring Director will not be applicable.

This explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the 
requirements of Sec�on 190 of the Act.

Except Shri Misra, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 
their rela�ves is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolu�on set out at 
Item no.5.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the special resolu�on set out at Item No. 5 of 
the accompanying No�ce for the approval of the Members.

Details of fixed components and performance 

linked incen�ves along with the performance 

criteria,

Service contracts, no�ce periods, severance fees, 

and

Stock op�on details, if any, and whether the same 

had been issued at a discount as well as the period 

over which accrued and over which exercisable.

Nominee  Directors,  Independent  Directors  and 

MD&CEO.  None  of  the  directors  are  given  any 

remunera�on except for MD&CEO. The details of 

remunera�on paid to MD&CEO by SIDBI and reimbursed 

by ISARC are as stated above. 

India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited
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Annexure A

Addi�onal informa�on on Directors seeking appointment / re­appointment at the AGM

[Pursuant to the Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs]

Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo

07738940

57 years

M.COM, PGDHRM, CAIIB, PGWM, PGD–Interna�onal Business.

He is fellow member of IIBF. He is having vast experience in Asset 

Management, vigilance and recovery. He is presently the General 

Manager handling the por�olio of Stress Asset Management of 

Bank of Baroda

Nominee Director on behalf of Bank of Baroda, liable to re�re by 

rota�on as per Ar�cles of Associa�on

Nil

Nil

March 27, 2023

Nil

None

8/10

Nil

Name

DIN

Age

Qualifica�on and Exper�se 

Terms and condi�ons of appointment

Details of remunera�on last drawn during 

the Financial Year 2023­24

Details of remunera�on sought to be paid

Date of appointment on the Board

Shareholding in the Company

Rela�onship  with  other  Directors, 

Manager  and  other  Key  Managerial 

Personnel

The number of Mee�ngs of the Board 

a�ended / eligible to a�end during (FY 

2023­24)

Other  Directorships / Membership / 

Chairmanship  of  Commi�ees  of  other 

Board 
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India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

12



Smt Rachna Dikshit

08759332

65 years

MA, CAIIB

She re�red as Regional Director, Reserve Bank of India (RBI). 

During her long experience with RBI, in addi�on to supervisory 

func�ons, she has closely coordinated with other Financial 

Ins�tu�ons and Government func�onaries. She performed the 

role of spearheading financial literacy and inclusion for the 

unbanked and underbanked popula�on which are marginalized 

and interacted with small, medium and micro enterprises to push 

banking assistance. During her pos�ng as GM, Department of 

Banking Regula�on, RBI Central Office, she was responsible for 

Financial Ins�tu�ons Division and Credit Informa�on Division. 

She was also part of the Kapoor Commi�ee cons�tuted by the 

Governor of RBI to study Credit Flow to SSIs in 1998.

Independent Director not liable to re�re by rota�on

Si�ng Fees

Si�ng Fees

The Board appointed for second consecu�ve term with effect 

from October 09, 2023 to October 08, 2026

Nil

None

7/8

Directorships

India Shelter Finance Corpora�on Limited

Arthimpact Digital Loans Private Limited

Capital Small Finance Bank

Miracle Founda�on India

Memberships / Chairmanships of the Commi�ees of other Board

1. Capital Small Finance Bank

 Risk Management Commi�ee – Chairperson

 Management Commi�ee – Member

2. India Shelter Finance Corpora�on Limited

 Audit Commi�ee ­ Chairperson

 CSR Commi�ee ­ Member

 Wilful Defaulter Commi�ee (Review Commi�ee) ­ Member

 Internal Complaints Commi�ee ­ Board Representa�ve

 Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee ­ Chairperson

Name

DIN

Age

Qualifica�on and Experience

Terms and condi�ons of appointment

Details of remunera�on last drawn during 

the Financial Year 2023­24 

Details of remunera�on sought to be paid

Date of appointment on the Board

Shareholding in the Company

Rela�onship  with  other  Directors, 

Manager  and  other  Key  Managerial 

Personnel

The number of Mee�ngs of the Board 

a�ended / eligible to a�end during (FY 

2023­24)

Other  Directorships / Membership / 

Chairmanship of Commi�ees of other 

Board
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Shri Amitabh Misra

10370703

54 years

Post Gradua�on in Economics from JNU

Shri Amitabh Misra has vast experience in NPA Management, 

Project Financing, Start­up Finance and Microfinance. 

Terms and condi�ons of appointment as men�oned in the SIDBI 

deputa�on le�er no. HRV No.2024/OCT/L001305310/Staff 83(B) 

dated October 20, 2023, as stated in the above Explanatory 

Statement.

Nil

As per the terms and condi�ons men�oned above in the 

explanatory statement.

December 06, 2023

Nil

None

3/3

Nil

Name

DIN

Age

Qualifica�on and Exper�se 

Terms and condi�ons of appointment

Details of remunera�on last drawn during 

the Financial Year 2023­24 

Details of remunera�on sought to be paid

Date of first appointment on the Board

Shareholding in the Company

Rela�onship  with  other  Directors, 

Manager and other Key Managerial 

Personnel

The number of Mee�ngs of the Board 

a�ended / eligible to a�end during (FY 

2023­24)

Other  Directorships / Membership / 

Chairmanship of Commi�ees of other 

Board 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT      

The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presen�ng the 16th Annual Report of the Company on the 
business, opera�ons and state of the affairs of the Company together with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Brief par�culars of the financial performance of the Company during the Financial Year (FY) 
2023­24 and previous year is as under: ­

(` in Lakh)
 Sl. No.   Par�culars Year ended Year ended
    31­Mar­24 31­Mar­23

 I Revenue from opera�on 247 579

 II Other Income  1561 1069

 III Total revenue (I+II) 1808 1647

 IV Opera�ng Expenses   457 467

 V Opera�ng Profit (III­IV) 1351 1180

 VI Provision for Advances to Trusts ­ 9 

 VII Write­Off Security Receipts/Advance to Trusts/GST 

  recoverable on reversed management fee 283 418

 VIII EBITDA (V­VI­VII) 1068 753

 IX Interest  ­ ­

 X Deprecia�on  4 2

 XI PBT (VIII­IX­X)  1064 751

 XII Tax  128 211

 XIII PAT (XI­XII)  936 540

 XIV Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Basic & Diluted) 0.94 0.54



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Summary of performance of the Company in brief during FY2023­24 is as under:

a) Revenue from Opera�ons has come down to ₹247 lakh in FY2024 from ₹579 lakh in FY2023 
on account of less upside income and unrealized management fee.   Further, there are only 
3 live Trusts, as a result of which accrual of management fee was also less. 

b) Though the Company has made good recovery of ₹7669 lakh during FY2024, the en�re 
amount has been u�lized towards redemp�on of Security Receipts (SRs) and realisa�on of 
unrealized management fee / interest on advance to trusts recovered during the year was 
only minimal which has resulted in decline in opera�onal income. 

c) Other Income comprises interest on Fixed Deposits, interest on advance to trusts and write 
back of provision made on Security Receipts. Interest income has increased from ₹562 lakh 
in FY2023 to ₹769 lakh in FY2024, as the FD amount as well as the rate of interest offered by 
banks have increased. Many Fixed Deposits which matured during the year were placed 
with the banks offering higher rate of interest. Write back of provision made on SRs / 
Advance to Trusts has increased to ₹724 lakh in FY2024 from ₹491 lakh in FY23 on account 
of higher recovery out of fully provided for accounts and redemp�on of SRs.  

d) Opera�ng expenses have decreased to ₹455 lakh in FY2024 from ₹471 lakh in FY2023 due 
to decrease in deputa�on charges and rent for office premises on account of shi�ing of 
office from SIDBI's premises at BKC to Andheri Arena House, 2nd Floor, Gate No.3 Plot 
No.103, Road No.12, Marol Andheri (East), Mumbai ­ 400093.

e) The write off of SRs / Advance to Trusts was only to the extent of ₹283 lakh during FY2024 
vis­à­vis ₹418 lakh in FY2023.

f) Profit post tax has increased to ₹936 lakh in FY2024 from ₹540 lakh in FY2023 due to write 
back of provisions made towards Security Receipts on account of substan�al recovery from 
provided for accounts.

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
Business Environment 

The Indian economy exhibited resilience during FY2023­24, notwithstanding persistent 
headwinds from subdued external demand, protracted geopoli�cal tensions and vola�le global 
financial markets. Real GDP growth was sustained at 7 per cent and above for the third 
successive year in FY2023­24, supported by robust growth in fixed investment on the back of 
the government's focus on capital expenditure.

As per the RBI's Financial Stability Report of December 2023, the overall asset quality for the 
banking sector con�nued its improving trend with percep�ble decline in Gross Non­Performing 
Assets (GNPA). The report also highlights that banks/NBFCs have experienced robust credit 
growth. It is es�mated that credit growth will lead to an expected rise in GNPAs for certain asset 
classes, poten�ally increasing the supply of stressed loans to ARCs. As per the data compiled by 
the ARC Associa�on, during the year, the industry has no�ced an increasing trend for acquisi�on 
of assets.
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Opera�ons 

(i) Asset Acquisi�on:
 To meet the required Net Owned Fund (NOF) as prescribed by RBI, the Company is 

currently in the process of raising addi�onal equity share capital through private 
placement with an op�on for the exis�ng shareholders to exit out and thus the Company 
will not undertake any new business �ll it meets the desired NOF in accordance with the 
RBI s�pula�on. 

(ii) Asset Resolu�on / Recovery:
 During the year, the gross & net recovery stood at ₹10769.22 lakh & ₹7668.81 lakh 

respec�vely. Security Receipt (SRs) worth ₹7105.80 lakh were redeemed during FY2023­24 
(a�er adjus�ng management fee and all commissions & expenses) to SR holders including 
ISARC (₹1582 lakh in the previous year). The cumula�ve gross recovery (since 
commencement of business) �ll March 31, 2024 aggregated ₹47489.26 lakh of which 
₹25179.64 lakh have been redeemed to SR holders including ISARC.

(iii) Assets Under Management (AUM):
 The aggregate SR issuance (since commencement of business) amounts to ₹54391 lakh out 

of which SRs amoun�ng to ₹28201.79 lakh were outstanding as on March 31, 2024, SRs 
amoun�ng to ₹25179.64 lakh have been redeemed and SRs amoun�ng to ₹1009.50 lakh 
have been wri�en off �ll March 31, 2024. The AUM including addi�onal funding (since 
commencement of business) is ₹55095 lakh whereas the Net AUM of the Company is 
₹28201.79 lakh as on March 31, 2024.

(iv) Ra�ngs of Security Receipts & Net Asset Value (NAV) of SRs:
 As on March 31, 2024, aggregate SRs amoun�ng to ₹ 4677.79 lakh have been rated by 

ra�ng agencies under the recovery ra�ngs scale as per the guidelines issued by RBI to ARCs 
and the corresponding NAVs have been communicated to the respec�ve SR holders.

THE CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of the 
Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
There is no amount proposed to be transferred to reserves.

DIVIDEND
In order to conserve the capital, par�cularly keeping in view the infusion of addi�onal equity 
share capital to achieve the Net Owned Fund requirement s�pulated by RBI, your directors do 
not recommend any dividend payment at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng of the Company.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND ETC. TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND (IEPF)
Since there was no amount lying with respect to unpaid/unclaimed Dividend, the provisions of 
Sec�on 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company had neither accepted nor held any deposits from 
the public and shall not accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval 
from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).



MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY
The Company has shi�ed its Registered Office from “Swavalamban Bhavan”, C­11, G Block, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai – 400051 to “Arena House”, 2nd Floor, Gate No.3, 
Plot No.103, Road No.12, Marol, M.I.D.C., Andheri (East), Mumbai­400093 with effect from July 
01, 2023.

As per the RBI Master Direc�ons issued for Asset Reconstruc�on Companies dated April 24, 
2024, ARCs exis�ng on October 11, 2022 are required to maintain NOF of ₹200 Crore by March 
31, 2024 and ₹300 Crore by March 31, 2026. Non­Compliance shall be subject to supervisory 
ac�on, including prohibi�on on undertaking incremental business �ll it reaches the required 
minimum NOF applicable at that �me. As on June 30, 2024, the net worth of the Company 
stands at ₹147.38 Crore. The Company is currently in the process of raising addi�onal equity 
share capital through private placement. The Company has iden�fied the poten�al investor, 
and the dra� of Share Subscrip�on and Purchase cum Shareholders' Agreement (SSPSHA) has 
been circulated to all the shareholders for their approval. On approval of SSPSHA from majority 
of the shareholders, the same will be placed before the Board and members for their approval. 
Following this, the SSPSHA will be executed and an applica�on seeking approval for change in 
Sponsors will be submi�ed to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

The Company has requested Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to grant an extension to meet the NOF 
requirement.

Apart from the above, there were no other material changes impac�ng on the financial posi�on 
of the Company from the end of the financial year under review up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Commi�ees
The Board of Directors of the Company has cons�tuted Audit Commi�ee (AC), Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC), Risk Management Commi�ee (RMC), Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee, Execu�ve Commi�ee (EC) and Capital Raising Commi�ee 
(CRC), inter­alia, to provide guidance to Board, frame policies and plans, monitor the risks, 
recommend the appointment and remunera�on of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMPs). Risks wherever iden�fied are mi�gated through necessary ac�ons, commensurate with 
the opera�ons of the Company.

The Board
The Board of Directors along with its Commi�ees provide leadership and guidance to the 
Company's Management and directs, supervises and controls the ac�vi�es of the Company. In 
addi�on to the governance prac�ces, the Board lays strong emphasis on transparency, 
accountability and integrity. 

As on the date of this report, the Board comprises 10 (Ten) Directors, of which 4 (Four) are Non­
Execu�ve Nominee Directors, 5 (Five) are Independent Directors including Woman Director and 
1 (One) Managing Director and Chief Execu�ve Officer. 

A detailed report on Corporate Governance is placed as Annexure­I.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Your Company has adopted a comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management policy to iden�fy, 
assess, manage, monitor and mi�gate the risk associated with your Company's business. The 
Policy sets as a guiding principle to set up the process of execu�on, implementa�on and 
mi�ga�on of risk associated with the business of the Company.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY
Your Company has adopted a Business Con�nuity Management policy to ensure con�nuity, 
resump�on and recovery of cri�cal business processes, at an agreed level and limit the impact 
of the disaster on people, processes and infrastructure including Informa�on Technology and to 
minimise the opera�onal, financial, legal, reputa�onal and other material consequences arising 
from a disaster.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board met at regular intervals to consider, among other businesses, quarterly performance 
of the Company and financial results. To enable the Board to discharge its responsibili�es 
effec�vely and take informed decisions, necessary informa�on was made available to the Board 
including circula�on of agenda and notes thereof as well as presenta�ons on financials and 
other cri�cal areas of opera�ons of the Company. The Board was also kept informed of overall 
performance of the Company, major events/items and approvals taken, wherever necessary.  
The Board also took decisions by circular resolu�ons which were noted by the Board at the 
subsequent mee�ngs.

During FY2023­24, the Company held 10 (Ten) mee�ngs of the Board of Directors as per Sec�on 
173 of the Companies Act, 2013. These were held on May 15, 2023, June 27, 2023, July 31, 2023, 
September 06, 2023, October 13, 2023, October 20, 2023, November 03, 2023, January 08, 
2024, February 14, 2024, and March 22, 2024. 

STATEMENT AS TO COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE CONSTITUTION OF 
INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The Board has formulated and adopted a policy on preven�on of sexual harassment at 
workplace and takes all necessary measures to ensure a harassment free workplace and has 
ins�tuted an Internal Complaints Commi�ee for redressal of complaints and to prevent sexual 
harassment. The Company believes that all employees, including other individuals, who are 
dealing with the Company, have the right to be treated with dignity.

During the year under review, there were no complaints received or pending of any sexual 
harassment. The Policy on Protec�on of Sexual Harassment at Workplace is placed on the 
website of the Company https://www.isarc.in/information-corner.htm

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs)
The Composi�on of the Board is in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, (Act) and the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India and other applicable laws, inter­alia, with respect to appointment of women director, non­
execu�ve director(s) and independent director(s).

Director(s) re�ring by rota�on
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable 



Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014, including any 
modifica�ons / amendments thereof, Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo (DIN No.:07738940), is liable 
to re�re by rota�on at the forthcoming Annual General Mee�ng, being longest in office, in 
compliance with the Ar�cle 138, 158 and proviso to 187(iii) of the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 
Company and Sec�on 152(6) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
being eligible offers himself for re­appointment.

Brief par�culars of Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo (DIN No.:07738940) as required under 
Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs (SS­2) are provided in the No�ce convening the 
Annual General Mee�ng of the Company.

Appointment of Directors 
The Board in its mee�ng held on March 31, 2023, approved the appointment of Shri Hari 
Shanker Sharma and Shri Sandeep Welling as Addi�onal (Independent) Directors with effect 
from approval date of Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The Company has received approval from 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for appointment of Shri Hari Shanker Sharma, having DIN No. 
07123442 on June 22, 2023 and for appointment of Shri Sandeep Welling, having DIN No. 
00072457 on July 05, 2023.

The Board in its mee�ng held on January 08, 2024, based on the recommenda�on of NRC, 
subject to approval of RBI and shareholders, have approved the appointment of Shri Amitabh 
Misra having DIN No.10370703, as Managing Director and CEO with effect from the date of 
approval from RBI. The Company received approval from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for a term 
of three years with effect from December 06, 2023. Approval of members is sought in the 
ensuing general mee�ng.

The Company received approval from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for appointment of Shri 
Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan, having DIN No.: 10347692, who has been nominated as 
Director on the Board of Company by Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI). The 
Board in its mee�ng held on October 13, 2023, have approved the appointment of Shri Sankaran 
Gomathi Ananthakrishnan as a Nominee Director represen�ng SIDBI with effect from approval 
date of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) i.e. December 13, 2023.

The Company received approval from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for appointment of Shri 
Prakash Kumar, having DIN No.: 06758416, who has been nominated as Director on the Board of 
Company by Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI). The Board in its mee�ng held 
on January 08, 2024, have approved the appointment of Shri Prakash Kumar as a Nominee 
Director represen�ng SIDBI with effect from approval date of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) i.e. 
March 28, 2024. 

Re­appointment of Independent Director
The Board of Directors in its mee�ng held on July 31, 2023 based on recommenda�on of 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, subject to approval of RBI and shareholders, have 
approved the re­appointment of Smt Rachna Dikshit for second consecu�ve term of three 
years. Company has received the RBI approval vide le�er No.DoR.HGG.GOV.No.S3833 
/18.03.001/2023­24 dated October 09, 2023. Approval of members is sought in the ensuing 
general mee�ng, to approve her consecu�ve term of three years with effect from October 09, 
2023 to October 08, 2026.
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Cessa�on of Directors 
Shri Venkatarao Satya Vasantha Rao, Nominee Director represen�ng Small Industries 
Development Bank of India (SIDBI), having DIN No. 00334394, ceased to be a Director on the 
Board of the Company with effect from June 02, 2023.

Shri Sunil S. Mirashi, Managing Director and CEO, having DIN No. 09732178, ceased to be a 
Director on the Board of the Company with effect from December 01, 2023.

Expiry of the term of Independent Directors
The members are informed that the second term of Shri Anup Sankar Bha�acharya, Chairman 
and Independent Director and Shri Shyam Sundar Barik, Independent Director, will get expired 
on September 29, 2024.

The Board of Directors acknowledges and appreciates the contribu�on made by Shri Anup 
Sankar Bha�acharya, Chairman and Independent Director and Shri Shyam Sundar Barik, 
Independent Director.

Key Managerial Personnel
In terms of the provisions of Sec�ons 2(51) and 203 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Shri Amitabh Misra, 
Managing Director and Chief Execu�ve Officer, Shri K Prakash, Chief Financial Officer and Smt 
Ketki Muzumdar, Company Secretary, are the Key Managerial Personnel of your Company.

DIRECTOR(S) DISCLOSURE
Based on the declara�ons and confirma�ons received from all the Directors, in terms of the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), circulars, no�fica�on and direc�ons 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and other applicable laws, including any modifica�ons 
or amendments thereof, none of the Directors of your Company is disqualified from being 
appointed as Director of the Company.

The Company has received necessary declara�ons from the Independent Directors, affirming 
compliance with the criteria of independence laid under the provisions of Sec�on 149(6) and 
sub rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�ons of Directors) Rules, 2014 of the 
Act. The Company has also received from them declara�on of compliance of Rule 6 (1) & (2) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�ons of Directors) Rules, 2014, regarding online 
registra�on with the 'Indian Ins�tute of Corporate Affairs', for inclusion / renewal of name in the 
data bank of Independent Directors. Board of Directors is of the opinion that the independent 
directors have the required integrity and possess relevant exper�se and experience including 
qualifying the online proficiency self­assessment test conducted by the Indian Ins�tute of 
Corporate Affairs, as no�fied under sub­sec�on (1) of sec�on 150 of the Act and their con�nued 
associa�on will be of immense benefit and in the best interest of the Company. The Board of 
Directors has taken on record the declara�ons and confirma�ons submi�ed by the 
independent directors for the FY2023­24.

None of the Directors of the Company is related inter­se, in terms of sec�on 2(77) of the Act 
including rules thereunder. The profile of the Directors forms part of the Corporate Governance 
Report.
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ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD
Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), the Board has carried out an Annual 
Performance Evalua�on of its own and the Directors individually including the Chairman, as well 
as the evalua�on of the working of its Audit, Nomina�on & Remunera�on, CSR and other 
Commi�ees.

A structured ques�onnaire designed for the performance evalua�on of the Board, its 
Commi�ees, Chairman and individual directors covering various aspects of performance, was 
circulated to all the directors of the Company for the annual performance evalua�on. Based on 
the assessment of the responses received to the ques�onnaire from the directors on the annual 
evalua�on of the Board, its Commi�ees, the Chairman and the individual Directors, a summary 
of the Board Evalua�on was placed before the mee�ng of the Board of Directors for 
considera�on. Accordingly, the Board at its 84th mee�ng held on May 09, 2024, assessed the 
performance of all the Directors including MD&CEO and Independent Directors. The Directors 
were sa�sfied with the results of the performance evalua�on of the Board & its Commi�ees, 
Chairman and individual directors.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
During the year under review, the Company has not given any loan or provided any guarantee 
and has not made any investments in terms of Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Company has not taken any Loan from the Banks or Financial 
Ins�tu�ons and thus the provision under Rule 8 sub­rule 5 (xii) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES
All the related party transac�ons entered by the Company are on arm's length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business. All the related party transac�ons as required under applicable 
accoun�ng standards are reported in the Notes to the Financial Statement.

Relevant Form AOC­2 for disclosure of par�culars of contracts / arrangements entered into by 
the Company with related par�es referred to in sub­sec�on (1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (Act) is given as Annexure II to this Report.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any contract / arrangement / transac�on 
with related par�es which may have a poten�al conflict with the interest of the Company at 
large. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Commi�ee is obtained for the transac�ons which are 
of a foreseen and repe��ve nature. The transac�ons entered into pursuant to the omnibus 
approval so granted are audited and a statement giving details of all the related party 
transac�ons is placed before the Audit Commi�ee for review. None of the Directors has any 
pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons with the Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 134(3)(a) and sec�on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(Act), read with rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, the 
Annual Return (Form MGT­7) of the Company as on March 31, 2024, once prepared, shall be 
disclosed on the Company's website at https://www.isarc.in/information-corner.htm.

Annual return as on March 31, 2023 in Form MGT­7 is available on the website of the Company 
at the link stated above.



India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

16th Annual Report, 2023­24 23

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company sees itself as an essen�al part of society and is well aware of its responsibili�es 
beyond financial considera�ons towards improving the quality of life of the communi�es at 
large.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with rules made 
thereunder, including its modifica�ons or amendments thereof, Company has filed Form CSR­2 
for the FY2022­23. 

CSR Liability for FY2023­24 is ₹8 Lakh. The Company has contributed the said amount to SIDBI 
Swavalamban Founda�on and the same was u�lized towards tui�on fees of 70 orphan students 
for the academic year 2023­24 studying at Saraswa� Bal Mandir, New Delhi to enable these 
students of poor and economically and socially weaker sec�ons of the society including BPL to 
con�nue their educa�onal pursuits and prevent them from dropping out of formal educa�on. 
Further, CSR Liability for FY2024­25 is ₹14 Lakh since the average net profits of the Company 
during the three immediately preceding financial years is ₹705 Lakh

The Policy adopted by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is placed on the 
website of the Company https://www.isarc.in/information-corner.htm. Annual Report on 
Corporate Social Responsibility is given as Annexure III to this Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARD
The Company complies with the applicable Secretarial Standard issued by the Ins�tute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the informa�on and explana�ons 
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Sec�on 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013:

(a) in the prepara�on of the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2024, the 
applicable accoun�ng standard and RBI guidelines were followed along with proper 
explana�on rela�ng to material departures.

(b) the Directors had selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and es�mates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other 
irregulari�es.

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2024 
on a 'going concern' basis.

(e) the Directors had prepared quarterly financials duly audited by the internal auditors and 
reviewed by the Statutory Auditors during the year.

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.
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1 The “Status of pending CAG para” in 
Annual report of the Company for the 
FY2022­2023 was incorporated for a 
period upto June 30, 2022 instead of 
upto March 31, 2023 and the same 
data was incorporated in Form AOC­4 
XBRL for the FY2022­2023

Sr.
No. Audit Observa�ons Comments/Compliance

As per the instruc�ons of C&AG, the Company has been repor�ng 
all pending paras in the C&AG audit report and the progress 
thereon in the Annual Report every year. 

In FY2022­23, the said disclosure was inadvertently printed for a 
period as on June 30, 2022 instead of upto March 31, 2023 in the 
Annual Report. On March 31, 2023, the outstanding SRs in 
respect of ISARC Axis 1/2009­10 Trust and ISARC Print 7C/2010­
11 Trust had been redeemed fully and with regard to ISARC BOI 
1/2009­10 Trust, as there was no scope for recovery, the 
outstanding Security Receipts had been wri�en off. As such, the 
aggregate SRs balance had been shown higher by ̀ 225.39 lakh in 
the C&AG disclosure in the Annual Report FY2023. However, as 
this is only an addi�onal disclosure, this does not have any impact 
or change in the financials. Incidentally, prior to publica�on of the 
Annual Report FY2023, the correct posi�on regarding the 
disclosures was already shared with the C&AG in compliance to 
their requirement received vide their le�er dated July 07, 2023. 
Based on same, C&AG vide le�er no.GA/CA­1/IR/ISARC/2013­
18/2324/ I / 436365/2023 dated November 06, 2023 closed the 

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT
Statutory Auditor
In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the 
rules framed thereunder, the Statutory Auditors of your Company are appointed by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). C&AG vide No./CA.V/COY/Central 
Government, ISARCL (1)/1270 dated 21/09/2023 have appointed M/s Desai Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as Statutory Auditor for the FY2023­24.

The statutory auditors have not reported any incident of fraud during the year under review. 
Further, the auditor's report does not contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark.

Internal Auditor
In terms of provisions of Sec�on 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and other applicable 
laws, M/s. GMJ & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Internal Auditors of the 
Company for the FY2023­24. The Internal Audit reports are reviewed by the Audit Commi�ee 
on a periodical basis.

Secretarial Auditor
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Secretarial Audit 
has been carried out by M/s. S. S. Rauthan & Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretary, Mumbai 
for the FY2023­24 which confirms that the Company has complied with all the applicable 
provisions of the corporate laws, guidelines, rules, etc. The Secretarial Audit Report for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024 is given as Annexure IV to this Report.

Observa�ons of the Secretarial Auditor and comments of the Board of Directors on the same 
are as follows:
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The data related to CFO and his 
remunera�on was not entered in Para 
X of the Form MGT­7 for the FY 2022­
2023 and the same data was not 
entered in the Form AOC­4 XBRL for 
the FY 2022­2023

There are certain e­forms which were 
filed by the Company with the 
Registrar of Companies a�er the due 
date of filing during the audit period 
which are men�oned herein.

para and withdrew the requirement of such disclosures in the 
Annual Report from FY2024 onwards. 

During the FY 2022­23, Shri Sunil S Mirashi, MD & CEO and Shri K. 
Prakash, CFO were on deputa�on from the Small Industries 
Development Bank of India (SIDBI) in the Company. Thus, their 
remunera�on had been included in the Deputa�on Charges and 
the same had been disclosed in Note 25 (Related Party 
Transac�ons) of the Financial Statements.
In view of the observa�on, it is proposed to henceforth disclose 
the remunera�on separately instead of clubbing it with the 
deputa�on charges.

The form filing was delayed mostly due to factors not in control of 
the Company as indicated below.

However, it would be the endeavour of company to adhere to 
the �melines henceforth

Sr.
No.

Par�culars

Due date 
for filing 
eform(s)

Date of 
Filing 

eform(s)

Reason for 
the delay

DIR­12 for 
withdrawal of 
nomina�on of Shri 
Venkat Rao Satya 
Vasantha Rao as 
SIDBI Nominee 
(SRN: AA5846901)

DIR­12 for 
appointment of Shri 
Prakash Kumar as a 
Nominee Director 
(SRN: AA7724170)
DIR­12 for 
appointment of Shri 
Amitabh Misra as 
MD & CEO of the 
Company (SRN: 
AA6844788)
MR­1 for 
appointment of Shri 
Amitabh Misra as 
MD of the Company 
(SRN: AA6880768)
MGT­14 for 
appointment of Shri 
Amitabh Misra as 
MD & CEO of the 
Company (SRN: 
AA6849360)
DIR­12 for 
appointment of Shri 
Sankaran Gomathi 
Ananthakrishnan as 
a Nominee Director 
(SRN: AA6871924)

1

2

3

4

5

6

01.07.2023

27.04.2024

05.01.2024

04.02.2024

05.01.2024

12.01.2024

14.10.2023

13.05.2024

16.02.2024

23.02.2024

16.02.2024

22.02.2024

Communica�on 
with respect to 
withdrawal of the 
Nominee Director 
was received from 
SIDBI vide email 
dated October 09, 
2023 only, post 
which the form 
was filed with RoC.
Absence of regular 
Company 
Secretary coupled 
with technical 
issues in the MCA 
site, delayed the 
filing.

 

2

3
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REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS BY COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA (C&AG)
The C&AG vide their le�er no.GA/CA­1/AUDIT/INDIA SME/2023­24/DIS1050835 dated July 16, 
2024 has stated that their office has decided not to conduct supplementary audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 and as such have no 
comments to make under Sec�on 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE OF ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL
During the year under review, no such order was passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
which impacts the going concern status and Company's opera�ons in future.

APPLICATIONS UNDER IBC
There is NIL case filed against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
(31 of 2016), during the year.

However, the Company being the Financial Creditor for various Borrower Companies, 
proceedings are going on under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 for recovery of loan 
amount.

Approval from the shareholders for 
re­appointment of Smt. Rachna 
Dikshit as an Independent Director is 
pending since July 02, 2023

Smt Rachna Dikshit was appointed as an Independent Director on 
the Board of Directors of the Company in the Annual General 
Mee�ng (AGM) held in the year 2020 to hold office for a period of 
3 (Three) years with effect from July 03, 2020.

In terms of Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act 2013, an 
Independent Director is eligible for re­appointment on passing of 
Special Resolu�on. The Company, being a Regulated En�ty of 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI), is required to take prior approval 
from RBI. As Smt. Rachna Dikshit completed her ini�al term on 
July 02, 2023, to ensure the con�nuity of her term as an 
Independent Director without interrup�on and being eligible for 
re­appointment as Independent Director for 2nd term, Smt. 
Rachna Dikshit was appointed as Director by the Board in its 
mee�ng held on July 31, 2023, in the capacity of Non­Execu�ve 
Independent Director, subject to RBI and shareholders' approval 
and with effect from the RBI approval date in the ensuing General 
Mee�ng. Approval from RBI therea�er was sought vide le�er 
dated August 01, 2023.

The said re­appointment was informed / disclosed to the 
shareholders in the Director's Report placed before the Annual 
General Mee�ng (AGM) held on September 29, 2023.

RBI vide its le�er no.DoR.HGG.GOV.No.S3833/18.03.001/2023­
24 dated October 09, 2023 have approved the appointment for a 
period of three years.

The Extra­Ordinary General Mee�ng (EGM) was required to be 
held post the RBI approval but was not taken up with the 
inten�on to club the same with the approval for the new SIDBI 
nominee directors and MD&CEO. The said re­appointment of 
Smt. Rachna Dikshit is now proposed to be placed before the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng for 
approval.

4
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL (IFC)
Your Company has adequate internal control on Financial Repor�ng for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to the Company's policies, accuracy 
and completeness of the accoun�ng records, �mely prepara�on of reliable financial 
informa�on, which is commensurate with the opera�ons of the Company. These are rou�nely 
tested and cer�fied by Statutory as well as Internal Auditors. Significant audit observa�ons, if 
any, and follow up ac�ons thereon, are reported to the Audit Commi�ee. The Audit Commi�ee 
reviews adequacy and effec�veness of the Company's internal control environment and 
monitors the implementa�on of audit recommenda�ons.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Since the Company does not carry out any manufacturing ac�vi�es, disclosures pertaining to 
conserva�on of energy, technology absorp�on, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are not 
applicable to your Company, during the year under review. The Company is, however, 
constantly pursuing its goal of technological up­grada�on in a cost­effec�ve manner 
commensurate with its por�olio.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee func�ons, inter­alia, in accordance with Sec�on 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), iden�fy persons who are qualified to become Directors, 
recommend to the Board for their appointment and removal and carry out evalua�on of every 
Director's performance. The Company has put a Nomina�on and Remunera�on policy in place 
which formulates the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, competencies, posi�ve a�ributes 
and independence for the appointment of a Director and also criteria for determining the 
remunera�on of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. 

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy is placed on the website of the Company
https://www.isarc.in/information-corner.htm

SUBSIDIARIES / JOINT VENTURE / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Companies in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act). Hence, disclosure regarding 
the same is not applicable.

DISCLOSURE AS TO MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sec�on 148(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with rules made thereunder, for any of the services 
rendered by the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company, as and when required as per the provisions of the Sec�on 177(9) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or relevant regula�ons will establish a vigil mechanism / whistle blower 
policy for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns in the manner as may be 
prescribed. The Audit Commi�ee shall oversee the vigil mechanism.



HUMAN RESOURCES
Your Company believes that employees are its main strength. The Company has operated on 
lean but effec�ve staff structure and the same shall be suitably augmented to suit the business 
requirements of the Company from �me to �me. The Company has undertaken steps for 
employees' health and safety. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors express their apprecia�on and gra�tude for the co­opera�on, assistance and 
guidance received from Government of India, Reserve Bank of India (RBI), shareholders, 
bankers, regulatory bodies and other business cons�tuents, during the year under review. Your 
Directors also place on record their deep sense of apprecia�on for the commitment displayed 
by all execu�ves, officers and staff in the performance of the Company during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

Sd/­
Shri Anup Sankar Bha�acharya

Chairman & Independent Director 
(DIN No: 02719232)

Place: Bengaluru      
Date: August 14, 2024
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Annexure­I

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company believes that good Corporate Governance prac�ces ensure ethical and efficient 
conduct of the affairs of the Company and also help in maximising value for all its stakeholders 
like customers, employees and society at large in order to build an environment of trust and 
confidence among all the cons�tuents. 

The Company recognises that good corporate governance is a con�nuous exercise and 
reiterates its commitment to pursue highest standards of corporate governance such as 
empowerment and integrity of its employees, transparency in decision making process, fair & 
ethical dealings with all and last but not the least accountability to all the stakeholders. 

ISARC's governance structure is based on the principles of freedom to the execu�ve 
management within a given framework to ensure that the powers vested in the execu�ve 
management are exercised with due care and responsibility so as to meet the expecta�on of all 
the stakeholders. In line with these principles, the Company has formed three �ers of Corporate 
Governance structure, viz.:

a) The Board of Directors: The primary role of the Board is to protect the interest and enhance 
value for all the stakeholders. It conducts overall strategic supervision and control by 
se�ng the goals & targets, policies, repor�ng mechanism & accountability and decision­
making process to be followed.

b) Commi�ees of the Board of Directors: Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on & Remunera�on 
Commi�ee, Risk Management Commi�ee, Execu�ve Commi�ee & Corporate Social 
Responsibility Commi�ee to focus on financial repor�ng, audit & internal controls, 
compliance issues, appointment and remunera�on of Directors and senior management 
employees, sustainable development and business and risk management framework. 
Capital Raising Commi�ee has been cons�tuted to provide suitable direc�on / guidance to 
the Management with respect to the infusion of addi�onal equity share capital through 
private placement.

c) Execu�ve Management: The en�re business, including the support services, is managed 
with clearly demarcated responsibili�es and authori�es at different levels.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors comprises an op�mum combina�on of Execu�ve and Non­Execu�ve 
Directors (which includes Independent and Nominee Directors). Independent Directors are 
persons with proven record in the fields of Audit / Accounts, Finance, Risk Management, Law 
and Banking.

The Board of Directors take ac�ve par�cipa�on in the Board and Commi�ee Mee�ngs by 
providing valuable inputs to the Management on various aspects of audit / accounts, policy 
direc�on, governance, compliance, etc. and thus enhance the transparency in the decision­ 
making process of the Board of Directors.

Composi�on of Board of Directors
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the composi�on of Board of 
Directors of the Company, as on the date of report, is as follows:



 Sr. No. DIN No. Name of Directors  Designa�on

 1. 02719232 Shri Anup Sankar Bha�acharya Chairman and Independent Director

 2. 08184820 Shri Shyam Sundar Barik Independent Director

 3. 08759332 Smt Rachna Dikshit Independent Director

 4. 07123442 Shri Hari Shanker Sharma Independent Director

 5. 00072457 Shri Sandeep Welling Independent Director

 6. 06758416 Shri Prakash Kumar Nominee Director – Small Industries
    Development Bank of India (SIDBI)

 7. 10347692 Shri Sankaran Gomathi  Nominee Director – Small Industries
   Ananthakrishnan Development Bank of India (SIDBI)    

 8. 06822012 Shri Dilip Kumar Jain Nominee Director – Punjab Na�onal Bank (PNB) 

 9. 07738940 Shri Dinesh Namdeo Nominee Director ­ Bank of Baroda (BOB)

 10. 10370703 Shri Amitabh Misra Managing Director and Chief Execu�ve Officer

Profile of the Directors
The Brief profile of each Director, as on the date of this report, is given below:

Shri Anup Sankar Bha�acharya 
Chairman and Independent Director (DIN No.: 02719232)
Shri Anup Sankar Bha�acharya has been appointed as an Independent Director in the 10th 
Annual General Mee�ng held on September 28, 2018 and re­appointed for a second term of 
three years in the 13th Annual General Mee�ng held on September 30, 2021. He was the 
Director of Ins�tute of Banking Personnel Selec�on and Member of the Governing Council of 
Indian Ins�tute of Banking & Finance. He is an Honorary Fellow of Indian Ins�tute of Banking & 
Finance. He is the former Chairman and Managing Director of Bank of Maharashtra. He is having 
rich experience and in­depth knowledge of the Banking Industry from across various markets in 
India.

Shri Shyam Sundar Barik 
Independent Director (DIN No.: 08184820)
Shri Shyam Sundar Barik, re�red Chief General Manager­in­charge, Reserve Bank of India, has 
been appointed as Independent Director in the 10th Annual General Mee�ng held on 
September 28, 2018 and re­appointed for a second term of three years in the 13th Annual 
General Mee�ng held on September 30, 2021. He holds Post Gradua�on degree in Economics 
and a CAIIB. He has worked for more than 31 years with RBI in the areas such as currency 
management, regula�on and supervision of commercial banks and urban coopera�ve banks, 
redressal of customer grievances under Banking Ombudsman Scheme, financial inclusion and 
financial literacy etc. He has vast experience in the field of banking and finance.

He is the Chairman of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee and Capital Raising 
Commi�ee (CRC) and a Member of the Audit Commi�ee (AC) and Execu�ve Commi�ee (EC) of 
the Board of Directors of the Company. 

Smt Rachna Dikshit
Independent Woman Director (DIN No.: 08759332)
Smt Rachna Dikshit who re�red as Regional Director/CGM, Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has been 
appointed as an Independent Director and as Woman Director of ISARC w.e.f. July 03, 2020. She 
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has completed MA in Poli�cal Science with CAIIB. During her long tenure with RBI, in addi�on to 
supervisory func�ons, she has closely coordinated with other Financial Ins�tu�ons and 
Government func�onaries. She performed the role of spearheading financial literacy and 
inclusion for the unbanked and underbanked popula�on which are marginalized and interacted 
with small, medium and micro enterprises to push banking assistance. During her pos�ng as 
GM, Department of Banking Regula�on, RBI Central Office, she was responsible for Financial 
Ins�tu�ons Division and Credit Informa�on Division. She was also part of the Kapoor 
Commi�ee cons�tuted by the Governor of RBI to study Credit Flow to SSIs in 1998.

She is the Chairperson of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) and a member of the 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Shri Hari Shanker Sharma
Independent Director (DIN No.: 07123442)
Shri Hari Shanker Sharma has been appointed as Independent Director on the Board of the 
Company, for a term of three years, with effect from June 22, 2023. He re�red as General 
Manager from Bank of Baroda and is having 40+ years of experience in the field of banking and 
Risk Management. 

He is the Chairman of the Risk Management Commi�ee (RMC) and a Member of the 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Shri Sandeep Welling
Independent Director (DIN No.: 00072457)
Shri Sandeep Welling has been appointed as Independent Director on the Board of the 
Company, for a term of three years, with effect from July 05, 2023. He is member of ICAI. He is 
having more than 36 years of experience in the field of finance and accounts. He is Chief 
Opera�ng Partner of Kirtane & Pandit LLP, Chartered Accountants. 

He is the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee (AC) and a member of Capital Raising Commi�ee 
(CRC) of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Shri Prakash Kumar
Nominee Director of Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) (DIN No.: 06758416)
Shri Prakash Kumar has been appointed as Nominee Director on the Board of the Company with 
effect from March 28, 2024. Shri Prakash Kumar took charge as Deputy Managing Director of 
SIDBI on November 07, 2023.  Prior to this, he was the Chief General Manager in SIDBI and 
headed several important Ver�cals, viz., NBFC and Microfinance Ver�cal, Direct Credit Ver�cal, 
Risk Management Ver�cal, Treasury and Resource Management Ver�cal etc. He has also led the 
pres�gious Poorest State Inclusive Growth (PSIG) Project implemented by SIDBI with support 
from DFID, UK. He has more than 28 years of experience in SIDBI, in varied areas such as SME 
Financing, Microfinance, Risk Management, Treasury, NPA Management, Business Process Re­
engineering etc.  He has been invited as a speaker in several Conferences / Seminars concerning 
MSME financing & development related areas, both in India & abroad. He is a B.Tech in Chemical 
Engineering from IIT Delhi and Masters in Financial Management from NMIMS, Mumbai.
He is the Chairman of the Execu�ve Commi�ee (EC) and a member of Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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Shri Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan
Nominee Director of Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) (DIN No.: 10347692)
Shri Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan has been appointed as Nominee Director on the Board 
of the Company with effect from December 13, 2023. He joined SIDBI in December 1995 as 
Assistant Manager and since then served in higher grades during the course of service. He is the 
General Manager, Asset Recovery Ver�cal, SIDBI Head Office, Lucknow (since May 2022). He has 
more than 25 years of experience in MSME credit administra�on with exper�se in mul�­
func�onal areas comprising of MSME advances, startup funding and Micro Finance.

He is the member of Audit Commi�ee (AC), Risk Management Commi�ee (RMC) and Capital 
Raising Commi�ee (CRC) of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Shri Dilip Kumar Jain
Nominee Director of Punjab Na�onal Bank (PNB) (DIN No.: 06822012)
Shri Dilip Kumar Jain has been appointed as Nominee Director on the Board of the Company 
with effect from January 31, 2023. He is a member of Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, CAIIB and M.Com. He is having an experience of more than 35 years in public sector bank 
and SFC. He has extensive experience as a financial analyst and has held many senior posi�ons 
in Punjab Na�onal Bank. He is the Chief General Manager and Chief Financial Officer of Punjab 
Na�onal Bank since October 2020. He is also nominee director in PNB Housing Finance Ltd.

He is a member of the Audit Commi�ee (AC), Risk Management Commi�ee (RMC) and Capital 
Raising Commi�ee (CRC) of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo
Nominee Director of Bank of Baroda (BOB) (DIN No.: 07738940)
Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo has been appointed as Nominee Director on the Board of the 
Company with effect from March 27, 2023. He is fellow member of IIBF. He is having vast 
experience in Asset Management, vigilance and recovery. He is the General Manager handling 
the por�olio of Stress Asset Management of Bank of Baroda.

He is a member of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee, Execu�ve Commi�ee (EC) 
and Capital Raising Commi�ee (CRC) of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Shri Amitabh Misra
Managing Director and Chief Execu�ve Officer (DIN No.: 10370703)
Shri Amitabh Misra is a postgraduate in Economics from JNU. He started his career as an 
execu�ve in the Stock Holding Corpora�on of India Limited (SHCIL) in 1994 and later moved over 
to SIDBI as Assistant Manager in 1996. He has cross func�onal experience of more than 27 years 
in SIDBI with core domain exper�se in NPA Management, Project Financing, Start­up Finance, 
Microfinance and branch opera�ons, having worked in various opera�onal and policy areas of 
the Bank like Promo�on & Development, Direct Credit to MSMEs, opera�onal Audit, NPA 
Management & Recovery, Human Resources, Risk Management and various regional and 
branches offices besides MUDRA Ltd., it's subsidiary.
He is the member of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee, Risk Management 
Commi�ee (RMC), Execu�ve Commi�ee (EC) and Capital Raising Commi�ee (CRC) of the Board 
of Directors of the Company.
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Mee�ng of Independent Directors
As s�pulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 
2013, a separate mee�ng of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on March 28, 
2024 to review the performance of the Board, Chairman and Board­Management rela�ons.

The Independent Directors are adhering to the Code of Conduct prescribed under Schedule IV 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Mee�ng
The 15th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company was held on September 29, 2023 through 
Video Conference in Microso� Teams. All the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made thereunder with respect to conduc�ng of General Mee�ng with Video 
Conferencing were duly adhered. AGM was a�ended by the Members, Chairman of Audit 
Commi�ee and Representa�ve appointed by the Chairman of the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee of the Board, as required under Companies Act, 2013.

Commi�ees of the Board of Directors
In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the 
circular(s), no�fica�on(s) and direc�ons issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and the 
Company’s internal corporate governance requirements, the Board has cons�tuted various 
Commi�ees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific issues and ensure expedient 
resolu�on on diverse ma�ers. These include the Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on & 
Remunera�on Commi�ee, Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee, Execu�ve Commi�ee, 
Risk Management Commi�ee and Capital Raising Commi�ee. The ma�ers pertaining to 
financial results and auditors report are taken care of by the Audit Commi�ee and those 
pertaining to nomina�on / remunera�on of Key Execu�ves and Directors are within the realms 
of Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee. The terms of reference of Commi�ee of Directors 
are as per the Charter duly approved by the Board. The Corporate Social Responsibility 
Commi�ee focuses on compliance of CSR policy and framework by the Company and monitors 
the expenditure to be incurred by the Company. The Risk Management Commi�ee manages 
the integrated risk and further oversees the Risk Management func�on of the Company. Capital 
Raising Commi�ee is cons�tuted for scru�nizing and providing suitable direc�on / guidance to 
the Management with respect to the infusion of addi�onal equity share capital through private 
placement. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary for all the aforemen�oned 
Commi�ees. The minutes of the mee�ngs of all Commi�ees along with summary of key 
decision / discussion taken at each Commi�ee, is placed before the Board for discussion / no�ng 
/ approval.

Internal Compliant Commi�ee has been cons�tuted to ensure a harassment free workplace 
and prompt redressal of complaints under the under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Audit Commi�ee
The Commi�ee members possess strong accoun�ng and financial management knowledge. 
The Commi�ee meets the composi�on requirement pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 177 
of the Companies Act, 2013.



16th Annual Report, 2023­24

India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

34

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted vide Circular Resolu�on passed by the Board dated July 10, 
2023. The name of Shri. Venkatarao Satya Vasantha Rao, who ceased to be Nominee Director of 
SIDBI with effect from June 02, 2023, was removed. The name of Smt. Rachna Dikshit, whose 
term as Independent Director, expired on July 02, 2023, was removed. The name of Shri Hari 
Shanker Sharma and Shri Sandeep Welling, appointed as Independent Directors with effect 
from June 22, 2023 and July 05, 2023 respec�vely, were added.

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 84th Mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on May 09, 
2024. Shri Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan, appointed as Nominee Director of Small 
Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) with effect from December 13, 2023 replaced Shri 
Hari Shanker Sharma.

The Composi�on of Audit Commi�ee, as on date of this report, is as under:

 Sr. No. Name of the Commi�ee Members Designa�on

 1 Shri Sandeep Welling Chairman (Independent Director)

 2 Shri Shyam Sundar Barik Member (Independent Director)

 3 Shri Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan Member (Nominee Director)

 4 Shri Dilip Kumar Jain Member (Nominee Director)

During the year under review, the Audit Commi�ee met eight (6) �mes on May 15, 2023, July 31, 
2023, September 06, 2023, October 13, 2023, November 03, 2023 and February 14, 2024.

Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee is formed in compliance with the provisions of 
Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted vide Circular Resolu�on passed by the Board dated July 10, 
2023. The name of Shri. Venkatarao Satya Vasantha Rao, who ceased to be Nominee Director of 
SIDBI with effect from June 02, 2023, was removed. The name of Smt. Rachna Dikshit, whose 
term as Independent Director, expired on July 02, 2023, was removed. The name of Shri Hari 
Shanker Sharma appointed as Independent Director with effect from June 22, 2023 was added. 
The name of Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo appointed as Nominee Director (Bank of Baroda) with 
effect from March 27, 2023, was added.

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 84th Mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on May 09, 
2024. Smt Rachna Dikshit re­appointed as Independent Director for second consecu�ve term 
was added and Shri Prakash Kumar, appointed as Nominee Director of Small Industries 
Development Bank of India (SIDBI) with effect from March 28, 2024, was added. The names of 
Shri Shyam Sundar Barik, Independent Director and Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo, Nominee 
Director (Bank of Baroda) were removed.

The Composi�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, as on date of this report, is as 
under:

 Sr. No. Name of the Commi�ee Members  Designa�on

 1 Smt Rachna Dikshit     Chairperson (Independent Director)

 2 Shri Hari Shanker Sharma   Member (Independent Director)

 3 Shri Prakash Kumar     Member (Nominee Director)

During the year under review, the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee met five (5) �mes on 
July 31, 2023, August 29, 2023, October 20, 2023, November 11, 2023 and January 08, 2024.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee
The CSR Commi�ee is formed in compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted vide Circular Resolu�on passed by the Board dated July 10, 
2023. The name of Shri. Venkatarao Satya Vasantha Rao, who ceased to be Nominee Director of 
SIDBI with effect from June 02, 2023, was removed and the name of Shri Anup Sankar 
Bha�acharya, Independent Director was removed as he was designated as the Chairman of the 
Board with effect from April 03, 2023.

stThe Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 81  mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on January 08, 
2024. The name of Shri Amitabh Misra, MD&CEO, appointed with effect from December 06, 
2023 was added. The name Shri Sunil S Mirashi, who ceased to be MD&CEO with effect from 
December 01, 2023 was removed.

th
The Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 84  Mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on May 09, 
2024. Smt Rachna Dikshit re­appointed as Independent Director for second consecu�ve term 
was added.

The Composi�on of Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee, as on date of this report, is as 
under:

 Sr. No. Name of the Commi�ee Members  Designa�on

 1 Shri Shyam Sundar Barik   Chairman (Independent Director)

 2 Smt Rachna Dikshit     Member (Independent Director)

 3 Shri Dinesh Namdeo    Member (Nominee Director)

 4 Shri Amitabh Misra    Member (Managing Director and CEO)

During the year under review, CSR Commi�ee met once on July 31, 2023.

Risk Management Commi�ee
The Risk Management Commi�ee of the Company is formed to iden�fy and resolve the risk 
involved in the business of the Company.

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted vide Circular Resolu�on passed by the Board dated July 10, 
2023. The name of Shri Hari Shanker Sharma, appointed as Independent Director with effect 
from June 22, 2023, was added. The name of Smt. Rachna Dikshit, whose term as Independent 
Director, expired on July 02, 2023, was removed.

thThe Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 81  mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on January 08, 
2024. The name of Shri Amitabh Misra, MD&CEO, appointed with effect from December 06, 
2023 was added. The name Shri Sunil S Mirashi, who ceased to be MD&CEO with effect from 
December 01, 2023 was removed.

thThe Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 84  Mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on May 09, 
2024. Shri Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan, appointed as Nominee Director of Small 
Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) with effect from December 13, 2023 was added.



The Composi�on of Risk Management Commi�ee, as on date of this report, is as under:

 Sr. No. Name of the Commi�ee Members  Designa�on

 1 Shri Hari Shanker Sharma   Chairman (Independent Director)

 2 Shri Dilip Kumar Jain    Member (Nominee Director)

 3 Shri Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan Member (Nominee Director)

 4 Shri Amitabh Misra    Member (Managing Director & CEO)

During the year under review, RMC met once on June 21, 2023.

Execu�ve Commi�ee
The Board had cons�tuted the Execu�ve Commi�ee to take decisions with respect to the 
acquisi�ons of financial assets and ma�ers related thereto. 

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted vide Circular Resolu�on passed by the Board dated July 10, 
2023. The name of Shri. Venkatarao Satya Vasantha Rao, who ceased to be Nominee Director of 
SIDBI with effect from June 02, 2023, was removed. The name of Smt. Rachna Dikshit, whose 
term as Independent Director, expired on July 02, 2023, was removed. 

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 81st mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on January 08, 
2024. The name of Shri Amitabh Misra, MD&CEO, appointed with effect from December 06, 
2023 was added. The name Shri Sunil S Mirashi, who ceased to be MD&CEO with effect from 
December 01, 2023 was removed.

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 84th Mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on May 09, 
2024. Shri Prakash Kumar, appointed as Nominee Director of Small Industries Development 
Bank of India (SIDBI), appointed with effect from March 28, 2024 was added. The name of Shri 
Dilip Kumar Jain appointed as Nominee Director of Punjab Na�onal Bank (PNB) was replaced 
with Shri Dinesh Kumar Namdeo appointed as Nominee Director of Bank of Baroda (BOB).

The Composi�on of Execu�ve Commi�ee, as on date of this report, is as under:

 Sr. No. Name of the Commi�ee Members  Designa�on

 1 Shri Prakash Kumar    Chairman (Nominee Director)

 2 Shri Shyam Sundar Barik   Member (Independent Director)

 3 Shri Dinesh Namdeo    Member (Nominee Director)

 4 Shri Amitabh Misra    Member (Managing Director and CEO)

During the year under review, the Execu�ve Commi�ee met three (3) �mes on May 11, 2023, 
June 01, 2023 and March 30, 2024.

Capital Raising Commi�ee
The Board in its 77th mee�ng held on September 06, 2023 has cons�tuted the Capital Raising 
Commi�ee to scru�nize and provide suitable direc�on / guidance to the Management with 
respect to the infusion of addi�onal equity share capital through private placement.

The Commi�ee was recons�tuted at 81st mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on January 08, 
2024. The name of Shri Amitabh Misra, MD&CEO, appointed with effect from December 06, 
2023 was added. The name Shri Sunil S Mirashi, who ceased to be MD&CEO with effect from 
December 01, 2023 was removed.
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The Commi�ee was recons�tuted at Mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on May 09, 2024. 
Shri Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan, appointed as Nominee Director of Small Industries 
Development Bank of India (SIDBI) with effect from December 13, 2023 was added. 

The Composi�on of Capital Raising Commi�ee, as on date of this report, is as under:

 Sr. No. Name of the Commi�ee Members  Designa�on

 1 Shri Shyam Sundar Barik   Chairman (Independent Director)

 2 Shri Sandeep Welling    Member (Independent Director)

 3 Shri Dilip Kumar Jain    Member (Independent Director)

 4 Shri Dinesh Namdeo    Member (Nominee Director)

 5 Shri Sankaran Gomathi Ananthakrishnan Member (Nominee Director)

 6 Shri Amitabh Misra    Member (Managing Director and CEO)

During the year under review, the Capital Raising Commi�ee met four (4) �mes on November 
01, 2023, December 07, 2023, December 22, 2023, and February 07, 2024.

Internal Complaints Commi�ee
The Board has cons�tuted the Internal Complaints Commi�ee to take all necessary measures to 
ensure a harassment free workplace and for redressal of complaints. 

The Composi�on of Internal Complaints Commi�ee, as on date of this report, is as under:

 Sr.No. Name of the Commi�ee Members  Designa�on

 1 Smt Ketki Muzumdar    CS (Presiding Officer)

 2 Smt Geetha Kumar    CM (Member) 

 3 Shri Rony J D'souza    Manager­Admin (Member) 

 4 Smt Vanita Sawant    Outside Member

During the year under review, there is no complaint of any sexual harassment.

ATTENDANCE OF THE MEMBERS IN BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS DURING THE 
FY2023­24

A�endance of the Members in Board and Commi�ee Mee�ngs during the FY2023­24 
(Number of Mee�ngs a�ended / Number of mee�ngs eligible to a�end)

No. of 
Meet
­ings 
held

Shri 
Anup 

Sankar 
Bha�a
­charya 

(ID)

Shri. 
V. Satya 
Venkata 

Rao
(from 

25­05­2021
to 

02­06­2023)

Shri 
Sunil S 
Mirashi 

(MD&CEO)
(from 

02­12­2022
to 

01­12­2023)

Shri 
Shyam 
Sundar 
Barik 
(ID)

Smt 
Rachna 
Dikshit

(ID) 
(03­07­2020

to 
02­07­2023

& w.e.f.
09­10­2023)

Shri 
Hari

Shankar 
Sharma

(ID)
(w.e.f.

22­06­2023)

Shri 
Dinesh 
Kumar 

Namdeo 
(BOB)
(w.e.f

27­03­23)

Shri 
Sandeep
Welling

(ID)
(w.e.f 

05­07­23)

Shri 
Amitabh

Misra
(MD&CEO)

(w.e.f
06­12­23)

Sr.
No.

Type of 
the

Meet­
ing

Shri 
Dilip

Kumar 
Jain

(PNB)
(w.e.f.

31­01­2023)

Shri 
Sankaran 
Gomathi 
Anantha
krishnan
(SIDBI)

(w.e.f
13­12­23)

Shri 
Prakash 
Kumar 
(SIDBI) 

(w.e.f. 
28­03­2024)

1 Board 10 10/10 1/1 7/7 10/10 7/8 9/9 10/10 8/10 7/8 3/3 2/3 0/0

2 AC 6 NA 1/1 NA 6/6 1/1 5/5 6/6 NA 5/5 NA NA NA

3 NRC 5 NA NA NA 5/5 NA 5/5 NA 3/5 NA NA NA NA

4 CSR 1 NA NA 1/1 1/1 NA NA NA 1/1 NA NA NA NA

5 EC 3 NA  2/3 2/2 1/1 2/2 NA 3/3 NA NA 1/1 NA NA

6 RMC 1 NA NA 1/1 1/1 NA NA 1/1 1/1 NA NA NA NA

7 CRC 4 NA NA 1/4 4/4 NA NA 4/4 4/4 4/4 1/4 NA NA

8 ID 1 1/1 NA NA 1/1 0/1 1/1 NA NA 1/1 NA NA NA

9 AGM 1 1/1 NA 1/1 0/1 NA 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 NA NA NA



GENERAL INFORMATION
Share Capital
During the year under review, there have been no changes in the share capital of the Company. 
As on March 31, 2024, the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid­up Share Capital of the 
Company is ₹100 Crore only.

Signing of Financials
Since the Company Secretary was on Maternity Leave, the Board had authorized Shri Hari 
Shanker Sharma, Independent Director, to sign the financial statements in place of the 
Company Secretary.

Investor Correspondence
The Company Secretary
India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited
Arena House, 2nd Floor, Gate No.3, Plot No.103, 
Road No.12, Marol, M.I.D.C., Andheri (East), Mumbai­ 400093
Telephone: +91 22 69631100
Email: cs@isarc.in / isarc@isarc.in
Website: www.isarc.in

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

Sd/­
Shri Anup Sankar Bha�acharya

Chairman 
(DIN No: 02719232)

Place: Bengaluru      
Date: August 14, 2024
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Annexure­II

FORM AOC­2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub­sec�on (3) of Sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of par�culars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company 
with related par�es referred to in sub­sec�on(1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm's length transac�ons under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons not at arm's length basis

 Sl No      Par�culars     Details

 a) Name (s) of the related party and nature of rela�onship     NIL

 b) Nature of contracts / arrangements / transac�ons     NIL

 c) Dura�on of the contracts / arrangements / transac�ons     NIL

 d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transac�ons including the value, if any NIL

 e) Jus�fica�on for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transac�ons  NIL

 f) Date(s) of approval by the Board       NIL

 g) Amount paid as advances, if any       NIL

 h) Date on which the resolu�on was passed in general mee�ng as required under first proviso 
  to Sec�on 188         NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transac�ons at arm's length basis

 Sl No    Par�culars     Details

 a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of rela�onship  Small Industries Development Bank of
          India (SIDBI) – Sponsor of the Company

 b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transac�ons  Deputa�on Charges and Office Rent paid to
          SIDBI in ordinary course of business

 c) Dura�on of the contracts / arrangements / transac�ons  Con�nuous

 d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or   As specified in Related Party Disclosures 
  transac�ons including the value, if any    forming part of Financial Statements

 e) Date(s) of approval by the Board    May 09, 2024

 f) Amount paid as advances, if any    NIL

Note: Transac�ons with the trusts, managed by ISARC, are in the ordinary course of business 
and are at arm's length basis. The transac�ons with trusts are disclosed in Related Party 
Disclosures forming part of Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

Sd/­
Shri Anup Sankar Bha�acharya

Chairman 
(DIN No: 02719232)

Place: Bengaluru      
Date: August 14, 2024



Annexure­III

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

(As prescribed under Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014)

1. Brief Outline on CSR Policy of the Company 
 The CSR Policy of the Company has been framed in accordance with Sec�on 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. The Policy shall apply to all CSR 
programs undertaken / sponsored by the Company. 

2. Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee
 During the year under review, CSR Commi�ee met once on July 31, 2023. The Composi�on 

of CSR Commi�ee, as on the date of the report, is as under:

 Sl. No  Name of Director Designa�on/ Nature of Number of Number of
     Directorship mee�ngs held mee�ngs a�ended
      during the year during the year

 1 Shri Shyam Sundar Barik  Chairman  1 1
     (Independent Director) 

 2 Shri Dinesh Kumar  Member  1 1
  Namdeo  (Independent Director) 

 3 *Shri Sunil S. Mirashi Member (Nominee Director) 1 1

 4 **Smt Rachna Dikshit Member  
     (Independent Director) ­ ­

 5 ***Shri Amitabh Misra  Member (MD&CEO) ­ ­

 * Shri Sunil S. Mirashi ceased to be Managing Director & CEO with effect from December 01, 2023.

 ** Smt Rachna Dikshit was re­appointed as Independent Director for second consecu�ve term with effect 
from October 09, 2023.

 *** Shri Amitabh Misra was appointed as Managing Director & CEO with effect from December 06, 2023.

 During the year under review, the CSR Commi�ee was recons�tuted as detailed in the 
Corporate Governance Report.

3. Web­Link for the CSR Commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects 
 https://www.isarc.in/information-corner.htm

4. Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
 Not Applicable.

5.  Details of the amount available for set off and amount required for set off for the 
Financial Year, if any:

  Sl. Financial Year Amount available for set­off from Amount required to be set­ off for
  No.   preceding financial years (in ₹)   the financial year, if any (in ₹)

       NIL              

6.  Average Net Profit of the Company as per Sec�on 135(5) ­ ₹3,98,30,336.67
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(1)

Sl.
No

(2)

Name 
of the 

Project

(3)

Item from 
the list of 

ac�vi�es in 
ScheduleVII 

(4)

Local 
area 
(Yes
/No) 

(5)

Loca�on of the 
project

(6) (7) (8)

Amount 
spent for 

the project 
(in ₹)

Mode of 
Implementa�on
Direct (Yes/No).

Mode of Implementa�on
– Through Implemen�ng 

Agency

State District Name
CSR

Reg no.

NIL

(1)

Sl.
No

(2)

Name 
of the 

Project

(3)

Item from 
the list of 

ac�vi�es in 
Schedule

VII 

(4)

Local 
area 
(Yes
/No) 

(5)

Loca�on of the 
project

(6)

Project 
dura�on

(7)

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project
(in ₹)

(8)

Amount 
spent 
in the 

current 
financial 

Year 
(in ₹)

(9)

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for 
the project 

(in ₹)

(10)

Mode of 
Implementa�on
Direct (Yes/No).

(11)

Mode of 
Implementa�on

– Through 
Implemen�ng 

Agency

State District Name
CSR

Reg no.

NIL

7.  CSR Obliga�on

 (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5):  NIL

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the 
  previous financial years:         NIL

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:     NIL

 (d) Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year (7a+7b­7c):     NIL

8.   (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial Year

 (c)  Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the Financial 
Year

 (d) Amount spent in administra�ve overheads      NIL 

 (e) Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable     NIL

 (f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)    NIL

Amount Unspent (in ₹)

₹7,96,606.73

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year 

(in ₹)

Total amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR account as 

per Sec�on 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second 

proviso to sec�on 135(5)

Amount Date of Transfer
Name of 
the Fund

Amount Date of Transfer

Nil 7,96,606.73­ SIDBI Swavalamban 
Founda�on

25­09­2023

India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited
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(1)

Sl.
No

(2)

Project 
ID

(3)

Name 
of the 

Project 

(4)

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

(5)

Project 
Dura�on

(6) (7) (8)

Total amount 
allocated for 
the project 

(in ₹)

Amount 
spent on the 
project in the 

repor�ng 
Financial Year

(in ₹)

Cumula�ve 
amount 

spent at the 
end of the 
repor�ng 
Financial 

Year (in ₹)

(9)

Status of 
the Project 

Completed / 
Ongoing

NIL

Sl.
No.

Amount
transferred to
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
sec�on 135 (6) 

(in ₹)

Amount transferred to 
any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per 
sec�on 135(6), if any.

Name of 
the Fund

Amount
Date of 
Transfer

NIL

Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount spent 
in the 

repor�ng 
Financial 

Year (in ₹).

Amount remaining 
to be spent in 

succeeding financial 
years. (in ₹)

 (g)  Excess amount for set off, if any:

 Sl. No.    Par�cular      Amount (in ₹)

 (i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5)  NIL

 (ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year      NIL

 (iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)­(I  NIL

 (iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 
  or ac�vi�es of the previous financial years, if any     NIL

 (v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)­(iv)]   NIL

9. (a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three Financial Years

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the Financial Year for ongoing projects of the 
preceding Financial Year(s)

10. In case of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset (Details rela�ng to the asset so created 
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year): NIL

 (a) Date of crea�on or acquisi�on of the capital asset(s):      NA 

 (b) Amount of CSR spent for crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset:   NA

 (c) Details of the en�ty or public authority or beneficiary under whose 
  name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.    NA

 (d) Details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired 
  (including complete address and loca�on of the capital asset).    NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per sec�on 135(5) : NA

 For India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

 Sd/­       Sd/­
 Shri Shyam Sundar Barik    Shri Amitabh Misra
 Chairman      Member
 DIN No.: 08184820     DIN No.: 10370703
 Date: August 14, 2024     Date: August 14, 2024
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Annexure IV

FORM No. MR­3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD 01­04­2023 TO 31­03­2024
[Pursuant to sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

(CIN: U67190MH2008PLC181062)
Arena House, 2nd Floor, Gate no.3,
Plot no.103, Road No.12, Marol,
M.I.D.C., Andheri (East), Mumbai ­ 400093.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate prac�ces by India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company 
Limited (hereina�er called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verifica�on of the Company's Books, Papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the informa�on provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representa�ves during the conduct of Secretarial 
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period from 1st 
April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 (“Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the period from 1st April, 2023 to 31st March 2024 according to 
the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder and amendments 
thereto from �me to �me;

(ii) The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder 
and amendments from �me to �me;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye­laws framed thereunder and 
amendments from �me to �me;   

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The Company being unlisted Company following Regula�ons, Guidelines and Laws are not 
applicable; 



 Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):

 a. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011 and amendments from �me to �me;

 b. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) 
Regula�ons, 2015 and amendments from �me to �me;

 c. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018 and amendments from �me to �me;

 d. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat 
Equity) Regula�ons, 2021; 

 e. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Non – Conver�ble 
Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2021;

 f. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 and amendments from �me to �me, regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client;

 g. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 
2021; 

 h. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2018; 

(vi) The management has iden�fied and confirmed that the following other laws are 
specifically applicable to the Company as under: 

 a. Securi�sa�on and Reconstruc�on of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security 
Interest Act, 2002;

 b. Regulatory Guidelines, Regula�ons and Master Circulars issued by Reserve Bank of 
India issued under Securi�sa�on and Reconstruc�on of Financial Assets and 
Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002;

 c. The Securi�sa�on Companies and Reconstruc�on Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Guidelines and Direc�ons, 2003.

 We have relied on the representa�on made by the Company and its Officers for systems 
and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, 
Laws and Regula�ons to the Company and on examina�on of the relevant documents and 
records in pursuance thereof, on test­check basis, the Company has complied with the 
abovemen�oned laws specifically applicable to the Company;

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

 i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India.

 ii) The Company being an unlisted en�ty the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and 
amendments from �me to �me is not applicable.

 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, etc. men�oned above subject to following observa�ons:
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 1. The “Status of pending CAG para” in Annual report of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2022­2023 was incorporated for a period upto 30th June, 2022 instead of upto 
31st March, 2023 and the same data was incorporated in form AOC­4 XBRL for the 
Financial Year 2022­2023.

 2. The data related to CFO and his remunera�on was not entered in Para X of the form 
MGT­7 for the Financial Year 2022­2023 and the same data was not entered in the form 
AOC­4 XBRL for the Financial Year 2022­2023.  

 3. There are certain e­forms which were filed by the Company with the Registrar of 
Companies a�er the due date of filing during the audit period which are men�oned 
hereinunder as “Annexure B”

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve 
Directors and Non­Execu�ve Directors and the changes in the composi�on of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act, except men�oned herein under. 

Adequate no�ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the 
mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng.

All decisions at Board Mee�ngs and Commi�ee Mee�ngs are carried out with requisite majority 
as recorded in the minutes of the Board of Directors or commi�ee of the Board, as the case may 
be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and opera�ons of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines. 

We further report that during the Audit Period, there are no event/ ac�on have taken place 
which is having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regula�ons, guidelines, standards etc. except approval from the shareholders for re­
appointment of Smt. Rachna Dikshit as an Independent Director is pending since 2nd July, 2023.

          For S. S. Rauthan & Associates
          Company Secretaries
          UIN: S1999MH026900

          Sd/­
          CS Surjan Singh Rauthan
                           Proprietor
          M. No.: FCS­4807
          C.O.P. No.: 3233
          UDIN: F004807F000979572
Place: Mumbai       P. R. No.: 1840/2022
Date: August 14, 2024      

Note: This Report is to be read with my le�er annexed as Annexure ‘A’ and Annexure ‘B’ which forms an integral 
part of this report.  
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ANNEXURE A TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE

To,
The Members
India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited
(CIN: U67190MH2008PLC181062)
Arena House, 2nd Floor, Gate no.3,
Plot no.103, Road No.12, Marol,
M.I.D.C., Andheri (East),
Mumbai – 400093. 
 
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this le�er.

1.   Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility is to make a report based on the secretarial records produced 
for our audit.

2.   We have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
verifica�on was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and prac�ces we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our report.

3.   We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 
accounts of the company.

4.   We have obtained the management's representa�on about the compliances of laws, rules, 
regula�ons and happenings of events, wherever required.

5.   Compliance with the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, 
standards is the responsibility of the management.

6.   This Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company.

          For S. S. Rauthan & Associates
          Company Secretaries
          UIN: S1999MH026900

          Sd/­
          CS Surjan Singh Rauthan
                           Proprietor
          M. No.: FCS­4807
          C.O.P. No.: 3233
          UDIN: F004807F000979572
Place: Mumbai       P. R. No.: 1840/2022
Date: August 14, 2024      
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ANNEXURE B

Following e­forms were filed by India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited for the 
Financial Year 2023­2024 a�er their due date of filing.

Sr. 
No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

Par�culars
Due date for 

filing eform(s)
Date of 

Filing eform(s)

DIR­12 for appointment of Shri Prakash Kumar as a Nominee 
Director (SRN: AA7724170)

DIR­12 for withdrawal of nomina�on of Shri Venkatrao Satya 
Vasantha Rao as SIDBI Nominee (SRN: AA5846901)

DIR­12 for appointment of Shri Amitabh Misra as MD & CEO of 
the Company (SRN: AA6844788)

DIR­12 for appointment of Shri Sankaran Gomathi Anantha          
­krishnan as a Nominee Director (SRN: AA6871924)

MR­1 for appointment of Shri Amitabh Misra as MD of the 
Company (SRN: AA6880768)

MGT­14 for appointment of Shri Amitabh Misra as MD & CEO of 
the Company (SRN: AA6849360)

27.04.2024

01.07.2023

05.01.2024

12.01.2024

04.02.2024

05.01.2024

13.05.2024

14.10.2023

16.02.2024

22.02.2024

23.02.2024

16.02.2024
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON THE DATE OF THE REPORT

SPONSORS

1 Punjab Na�onal Bank     20.90

2 Small Industries Development Bank of India    15.00

3 Bank of Baroda    14.00

4 SIDBI Venture Capital Limited    11.00

NON­SPONSORS 

Public Sector Banks 

5 Union Bank of India     8.00

6 Punjab and Sind Bank    5.00

7 Bank of Maharashtra    4.00

8 Canara Bank    4.00

9 Indian Bank    4.00

10 UCO Bank    4.00

Financial Ins�tu�ons and Others

11 Life Insurance Corpora�on of India    9.00

12 Andhra Pradesh State Financial Corpora�on    0.35

13 Kerala Financial Corpora�on    0.35

14 Raj Radhe Finance Limited    0.18

15 APITCO Limited    0.10

16 Rajasthan Financial Corpora�on    0.10 

17 NEM Investments and Finance Private Limited    0.02

 TOTAL    100.00

Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder
Shareholding

(%)



India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

16th Annual Report, 2023­24 49

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Opinion

 We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of India SME Asset 
Reconstruc�on Company Limited (the Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements including a summary of 
significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on.

 In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to 
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the informa�on required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

2. Basis For Opinion

 We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Audi�ng (SA's) prescribed under Sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(Act). Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements sec�on of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es 
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

3. Other Informa�on

 The Company's Management is responsible for the other informa�on. The other 
informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Company's annual report but does 
not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon.

 Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other informa�on 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

 In connec�on with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is 
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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4. Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

 The Company's Management is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the prepara�on of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accoun�ng Standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of 
appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no 
realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

 The Management is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng 
process.

5. Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

 Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Standalone Financial Statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skep�cism throughout the 
audit. We also; 

 a. Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from 
fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.



 b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

 c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of 
accoun�ng es�mates and related disclosures made by management.

 d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accoun�ng and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the 
Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

 e. Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, 
the planned scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

 From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those ma�ers that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe 
these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure 
about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communica�on.

6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Sec�on 143(11) of the Act (the Order), and on the 
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered 
appropriate and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, we give in 
the "Annexure A", a statement on the ma�ers specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the 
Order.
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 II. As required by Sec�on 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the 
informa�on and explana�ons given to us, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the 
direc�ons and sub direc�ons issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

 III. As required by Sec�on143(3) of the Act, we report that:

  a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

  b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examina�on of those books;

  c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash 
Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

  d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the 
Accoun�ng Standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Companies 
(Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the guidelines issued by The 
Reserve Bank of India from �me to �me under SARFAESI Act, to the extent 
applicable;

  e) On the basis of wri�en representa�ons received from the directors of the 
Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act;

  f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
repor�ng of the Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in "Annexure C". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng;

 IV. With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to 
us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial 
posi�on in its Standalone Financial Statements ­ Refer Note 31 to the Standalone 
Financial Statements.

  ii. The Company did not have any long­term contracts including deriva�ve contracts 
having any material foreseeable losses.

  iii. There are no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Educa�on and 
Protec�on Fund by the Company.

  iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and    
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from  
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign 
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en��es (Intermediaries), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company(Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

   (b)  The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or 
en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (Funding Par�es), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es 
iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

   (c)  Based on the audits procedures performed that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
no�ce that has caused us to believe that the representa�ons under subclause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) contain any material mis­statement.

  v. The Company has neither declared nor paid dividend during the year, hence we 
have nothing to report in this regard.

  vi. Based on our examina�on which includes test checks, the company has used an 
accoun�ng so�ware for maintaining its books of accounts which has feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transac�ons recorded in the so�ware. Further during the 
course of audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 
tempered with.

   As per proviso of Rule 3 (1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable 
from April 1, 2023 repor�ng under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules 2014 on preserva�on of audit trail as per statutory requirements 
for record reten�on is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 V. With respect to ma�er to be included in Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirement of sec�on 197 (16) of the Act, as amended , in our opinion and to the best 
of our informa�on and explana�on given to us, the remunera�on paid by the company 
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provision of sec�on 197 of the 
Act.   

          For Desai Associates 
          Chartered Accountant
          FRN No. 102286W

          Sd/­
Place: Mumbai        Iqbal Mukadam
Date: May 9, 2024       Partner
UDIN No: 24016865BKEKRQ3897     Membership No. 016865
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors' Report of India SME Asset Reconstruc�on 
Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (referred to in our report of even date).

We report that 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including  
quan�ta�ve  details and situa�on of Property, plant and equipment.

  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of Intangible 
assets.

 (b) As per informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Property, plant and equipment 
have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals in accordance 
with the programme of verifica�on which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the company and the nature of its Property, plant and equipment. 
According to the informa�on & explana�ons given to us, no material discrepancies 
were no�ced on such verifica�on.

 (c) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company does not own 
any immovable property included under the head fixed assets. Accordingly, provisions 
of clause 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

 (d) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its 
Property, plant and equipment (including right­of­use assets) or Intangible assets 
during the year.

 (e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings ini�ated or 
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibi�on 
of Benami Property Transac�ons Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder.

(ii)  (a) The Company is into the services sector, primarily rendering asset reconstruc�on and 
securi�za�on services and as such does not hold inventories and accordingly 
provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable.

 (b)  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanc�oned 
any working capital limits from banks or any financial ins�tu�on on the basis of current 
assets. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable to the 
company.

(iii) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, 
provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other par�es during 
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the Order are not 
applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company 
has not given/made loans, investments, guarantees, and security. The issue of compliance 
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with the provisions of sec�on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore does not 
arise.

(v)   The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
from the public to which the provisions of Sec�on 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under apply. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sec�on 
148(1)  of  the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and the records of the 
company examined by us, the company is generally regular in deposi�ng with the 
appropriate authori�es undisputed statutory dues including Income­Tax, Goods & 
Services Tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to it. No undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Income­Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise 
Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues were outstanding 
as at March 31, 2024 for period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

 (b)  According to the records of the Company, the dues of Income Tax, which have not been 
deposited on March 31, 2024 on account of any dispute, are as follows:

  

(viii) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed 
any transac�ons, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax 
assessments under the Income­tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a)  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not 
borrowed any amounts from financial ins�tu�ons, banks, government or by issue of 
debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a 
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or government or government 
authority.

 (c) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us by the management, the 
Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

 (d) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on an overall 
examina�on of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been 

Name of Statute
Nature of 

Dues

Period to 
which the 

amount relates

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending

Amount 
Involved

(`)

Amount
Unpaid (`)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2011­12 CIT(A) 19,73,166 5,900 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2014­15 CIT(A) 40,40,300 NIL

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2016­17 CIT(A) 20,000 NIL



raised on short­term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable.

 (e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on an overall 
examina�on of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company 
has not taken any funds from any en�ty or person on account of or to meet the 
obliga�ons of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

 (f) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and procedures performed 
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge 
of securi�es held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of ini�al public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable.

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our  
examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly conver�ble 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examina�on of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
informa�on and explana�ons given to us, considering the principles of materiality 
outlined in Standards on Audi�ng, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the 
Company has been no�ced or reported during the course of the audit.

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no report under subsec�on 
(12) of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form 
ADT­4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government.

 (c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints 
received by the company during the year. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore the provisions of clause 3 
(xii) of  the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the informa�on and explana�ons provided by the Management, transac�ons 
with the related par�es are in compliance with sec�ons 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone Financial 
Statements, as required by the applicable accoun�ng standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on informa�on and explana�ons provided to us and our audit procedures, in 
our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size 
and nature of its business.

 (b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued �ll date for the 
period under audit.

(xv)  In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company 
has not entered into any non­cash transac�ons with its directors or persons connected to 
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its directors and hence, provisions of Sec�on 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Sec�on 45­IA of the Reserve Bank 
of  India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b)  The Company is not required to be registered under Sec�on 45­IA of the Reserve Bank 
of   India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

 (c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regula�ons 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c)of the Order is not 
applicable. 

 (d) According to the informa�on and explana�ons provided to us during the course of 
audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(xvii)The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xviii)There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, 
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ra�os, ageing and expected dates of realisa�on of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabili�es, other informa�on accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence 
suppor�ng the assump�ons, nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is 
not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that 
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there is no 
unspent amount under sub­sec�on (5) of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant 
to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

          For Desai Associates 
          Chartered Accountant
          FRN: ­ 102286W

          Sd/­
Place: Mumbai        Iqbal Mukadam
Date: May 9, 2024       Partner
UDIN No: 24016865BKEKRQ3897     Membership No. 016865
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditors' Report of India SME Asset Reconstruc�on 
Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (referred to in our report of even date).

Report in terms of Sec�on 143(5) of the Act on the direc�ons and sub direc�ons issued by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India. We further report as under.

          For Desai Associates 
          Chartered Accountant
          FRN: ­ 102286W

          Sd/­
Place: Mumbai        Iqbal Mukadam
Date: May 9, 2024       Partner
UDIN No: 24016865BKEKRQ3897     Membership No. 016865

Sr. 
No.

Financial 
Implica�ons/Impact

1 Whether the company has system in 
place to process all the accoun�ng 
transac�ons through IT If yes, the 
implica�ons of processing of accoun�ng 
transac�ons outside IT System on the 
integrity of the accounts along with the 
financial implica�ons, if any, may be
stated.

Direc�ons Observa�ons of Auditor

Yes, the company has a system in 
place to process all the accoun�ng 
transac�ons through IT Systems. In 
our opinion and as per the records 
examined by us there are no 
accoun�ng transac�ons processed 
outside the IT System which may 
affect the integrity of the accounts.

Whether there is any restructuring of an 
exis�ng loan or cases of waiver / write off 
of debts / loans / interest etc. made by a 
lender to the company due to company's 
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the 
financial impact may stated. Whether 
such cases are properly accounted for?

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) 
received / receivable for specific schemes 
from central / state Government or its 
agencies were properly accounted for I 
u�lized as per its terms and condi�ons? 
List the cases of devia�on.

2 Not Applicable, as the Company has 
no borrowings

3 Not Applicable, as the company has 
not received any funds for specific 
schemes  from  central / state 
Government or its agencies

NIL

NIL

NIL

Whether the Company has Fair Prac�ces 
Code and a Board Approved policy on 
management  fees,  expenses  and 
incen�ves if any claimed from Trust 
under their Management. 

4 Yes.  The Company is having Board 
approved Fair Prac�ces Code and 
Policy  on  Management  Fee, 
expenses and incen�ves, as per the 
RBI Master Direc�on to ARCs.

NIL



ANNEXURE "C" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub­sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of India SME Asset 
Reconstruc�on Company Limited (the Company) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunc�on with our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the 
Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibili�es include the design, 
implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng 
effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of 
reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the Guidance 
Note) and the Standards on Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec�on 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
repor�ng.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng
A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to 
permit prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisa�ons of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, 
use, or disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng
Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any 
evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial repor�ng may become 
inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 
were opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial 
repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

          For Desai Associates 
          Chartered Accountant
          FRN: ­ 102286W

          Sd/­
Place: Mumbai        Iqbal Mukadam
Date: May 9, 2024       Partner
UDIN No: 24016865BKEKRQ3897     Membership No. 016865
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 
143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA SME 
ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

The prepara�on of financial statements of INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2024 in accordance with the financial repor�ng 
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India under sec�on 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the 
financial statements under sec�on 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance 
with the standards on audi�ng prescribed under sec�on 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to 
have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated May 09, 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct a 
supplementary audit of the financial statements of INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2024 under sec�on 143(6)(a) of the Act. 

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

sd/­
(Guljari Lal)

Director General of Audit (Shipping), Mumbai
Place: Mumbai
Date : 16.07.2024
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I. Details to be provided in the Annual Report in terms of recommenda�ons made by the 
thCommi�ee on Papers laid on the Table (Rajya Sabha) in its 150  Report are as under:

 Details of the vigilance cases for the FY 2023­24

 

II. Status of Pending CAG Para and Management Reply 

Sr. 
No.

Brief of the Para Repor�ng Status
Name of 
the Audit 

Para

NIL

Opening balance as on 
01.04.2023

Vigilance cases received during 
01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024

Disposed Off Balance

NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company



INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Shareholders’ Funds

 (a) Share Capital  2 10,000.00  10,000.00 

 (b) Reserves and surplus  3 2,968.28 12,968.28 2,031.61 12,031.61

2 Non­Current Liabili�es

 (a) Other Long Term Liabili�es  ­  ­

 (b) Long Term Provisions  4 ­ ­ ­ ­

3 Current Liabili�es

 (a) Short Term Borrowings  5 ­ ­

 (b) Trade Payables

  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 6 ­ ­

  Others  6 40.25  72.67

 (C)  Other Current Liabili�es  7 3.04  4.77 

 (d) Short Term Provisions  8 ­ 43.29  ­               77.44

   TOTAL   13,011.57  12,109.05

II ASSETS

1 Non Current Assets

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 

  and Intangible Assets  9

  Property, Plant and Equipment  10.09  13.52 

  Intangible Assets   0.32  0.32

 (b) Non Current Investments  10 701.66  854.00

 (c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)  11 151.66  193.98

 (d) Long Term Loans and Advances 12 178.48  404.51

 (e) Other Non Current Assets  13 576.28 1,618.49 642.25 2,108.58

2 Current Assets

 (a) Trade Receivables  14 22.55   131.94

 (b) Cash and Bank Balances  15 10,909.20  9,503.08 

 (c) Short Term Loans and Advances 16 18.78  22.66

 (d) Other Current Assets  17 442.56 11,393.08 342.79 10,000.47

   TOTAL   13,011.57  12,109.05

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 are integral part of the standalone financial statements.

Par�culars
Note 
No

 As at 
March 31, 2024

 As at 
March 31, 2023

(` in Lakh)

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Desai Associates INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 102286W Sd/­ Sd/­
 Amitabh Misra Sandeep Welling
 Managing Director & CEO Independent Director
 DIN: 10370703 DIN: 00072457

Sd/­ Sd/­ Sd/­
(Iqbal Mukadam) K. Prakash Hari Shanker Sharma
Partner CFO Independent Director
M. No.: 106865  DIN: 07123442
UDIN: 24016865BKEKRQ3897
Mumbai, May 9, 2024 Mumbai, May 9, 2024
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

 For the Year Ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the Year Ended 
March 31, 2023

Par�culars
Note 
No

I Revenue from Opera�ons  18  247.44  578.78

II Other Income  19  1,560.87  1,068.59

III Total Revenue (I + II)    1,808.32  1,647.37

IV Expenses:

 (a) Employee Benefit Expense  20 258.11  295.46

 (b) Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on Expense 9 4.48  2.41

 (c) Other Expenses  21 480.91  597.87

  Total Expenses    743.51   895.74

V Profit Before Tax (III ­ IV)    1,064.81  751.63

      

VI Tax Expense:

 (a) Current Tax    88.18  66.05

 (b) MAT Credit Availment/(En�tlement)           ­  ­

 (c) Deferred Tax    42.32  122.02

 (d) Income Tax ­ Earlier years    (2.37)  22.65

      128.14  210.73

VII Profit for the Year (V ­ VI)    936.67  540.90

VIII Earnings per Equity Share of ` 10/­ each: 23

 (1) Basic    0.94  0.54

 (2) Diluted    0.94  0.54

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 are integral part of the standalone financial statements.

(` in Lakh)

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Desai Associates INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 102286W Sd/­ Sd/­
 Amitabh Misra Sandeep Welling
 Managing Director & CEO Independent Director
 DIN: 10370703 DIN: 00072457

Sd/­ Sd/­ Sd/­
(Iqbal Mukadam) K. Prakash Hari Shanker Sharma
Partner CFO Independent Director
M. No.: 106865  DIN: 07123442
UDIN: 24016865BKEKRQ3897
Mumbai, May 9, 2024 Mumbai, May 9, 2024
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Taxa�on  1,064.81 751.63

Adjustments for:

Add: Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on Expense 4.48 2.41

Add: Sundry Balance Wri�en off  ­ 1.82

Add: Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  ­ 0.69

Add: Provision for Security Receipts  (313.75) (36.11)

Add: Provision for Diminu�on in Value of Security Receipts (57.22) (6.98)

Add: Provision for Advances to Trusts (55.03) 19.66

Add: Wri�en off Advance to Trust  0.29 3.78

Add: Provision for GST Recoverable on Reversed Management Fees ­ (55.89)

Less: Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  0.37 0.04

Less: Sundry Balance Wri�en back  ­ 0.05

Less: Interest on Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than three months 524.38 344.60

Opera�ng Profit before Working Capital changes 118.84 336.31

Changes in Working Capital

Adjustments for Opera�ng Assets

 Trade Receivables  109.40 30.90

 Security Deposits  (11.11) 0.03

 Short Term Loans and Advances  3.87 55.89

 Other Current Assets  (99.77) 483.96

Adjustments for Opera�ng Liabili�es

 Trade Payables  (32.42) 29.82

 Changes in provision  ­ (3.22)

 Other Current Liabili�es  (1.73) (16.72)

   (31.76) 580.66

Cash generated from  / used in  Opera�on 87.08 916.97

Less: Taxes paid  (20.87) (150.49)

Net Cash Flow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es (A) 66.20 766.48

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets  (1.84) (10.03)

Net Decrease in Investments:

 Security Receipts of Trusts  523.31 182.46

Sale of Fixed Assets  1.16 0.51

Advances given to Trusts  215.82 (62.59)

Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than three months 

but less than 12 months                (1,608.39) 638.85

Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 12 months 77.08 (642.00)

Interest Received  524.38 344.60

Net Cash Flow from Inves�ng Ac�vi�es (B) (268.49) 451.79

Par�culars
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year Ended 

March 31, 2023

(` in Lakh)

16th Annual Report, 2023­24

India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

66



Par�culars
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year Ended 

March 31, 2023

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

Net Cash Flow from Financing ac�vi�es (C)  ­     ­   

        

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C)                        (202.28) 1,218.27

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year 3,611.92 2,393.65

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 3,409.64 3,611.92

Reconcilia�on of Cash and Cash Equivalents with the Balance Sheet:        

Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 15) 10,909.20 9,503.08

Less: Bank balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents as defined 

in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements  (7,499.55) (5,891.16)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 3,409.64 3,611.92

(` in Lakh)

INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Desai Associates INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 102286W Sd/­ Sd/­
 Amitabh Misra Sandeep Welling
 Managing Director & CEO Independent Director
 DIN: 10370703 DIN: 00072457

Sd/­ Sd/­ Sd/­
(Iqbal Mukadam) K. Prakash Hari Shanker Sharma
Partner CFO Independent Director
M. No.: 106865  DIN: 07123442
UDIN: 24016865BKEKRQ3897
Mumbai, May 9, 2024 Mumbai, May 9, 2024
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NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

A. Company Overview:
 India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited (Company) was incorporated under the 

provisions of Companies Act, 1956 on April 11, 2008 and is registered with Reserve Bank of 
India (RBI) as an Asset Reconstruc�on Company to carry on the business of Securi�za�on 
or Asset Reconstruc�on under the provisions of Securi�za�on and Reconstruc�on of 
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI Act) since March 
5, 2009.

B. Significant Accoun�ng Policies: 
 1. Basis of prepara�on of financial statements:
  The financial statements are prepared under the historic cost conven�on in 

accordance with the Generally Accepted Accoun�ng Principles (GAAP) in India, the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the applicable accoun�ng standards 
as prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014, and the Guidelines/Direc�ons issued by the RBI from �me to 
�me under SARFAESI Act. The Accoun�ng policies applied in the prepara�on and 
presenta�on of the financial statements in the current year are the same as those 
applied in the previous year, except for the changes elaborated in the subsequent 
pages.

  All the assets and liabili�es are classified as current or non­current based on 
Company's normal opera�ng cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Act. 
The Company has ascertained its opera�ng cycle as 12 months for this classifica�on.

 2. Use of Es�mates:
  The prepara�on of Financial Statements in conformity with Generally Accepted 

Accoun�ng Principles (GAAP) in India requires management to make es�mates and 
assump�ons that affect the reported amount of assets and liabili�es and the 
disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es on the date of financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenue and expenses during the repor�ng period. Accoun�ng es�mates 
could change from period to period and the actual results could differ from those 
es�mates. Changes in es�mates are reflected in the period in which changes are made 
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

 3. Revenue Recogni�on:
  The Company sets up various trusts and schemes under the trusts for acquisi�on of 

financial assets and the income which accrues to it is accounted for as under:

  a) Management fee is recognized on accrual basis in terms of the provisions of the 
relevant trust deed/offer document. However, management fees which remains 
outstanding for a period exceeding 180 days and/or NAV of SRs fall below 50% of 
FV of SRs is derecognized and the same gets recognized again only on actual 
receipts basis on recovery in accordance with the RBI guidelines.
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  b) Yield on investment in Security Receipts represents excess realiza�on over 
acquisi�on cost of investments at the rates agreed in the trust deed / offer 
documents. It is recognized when the same is distributed by the respec�ve trusts.

  c) Upside income represents the realiza�ons made from the investments in security 
receipts over and above acquisi�on cost of investments and yield at the prescribed 
rates. It is recognized when the same is distributed by the respec�ve trusts.

  d) Interest Income:

   • Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.

   • In case of Non Performing Assets (NPA), as per the income recogni�on and 
asset classifica�on norms of RBI, interest income which had been recognized 
on accrual basis gets derecognized on the date of an asset becoming NPA and 
�ll the �me the asset is NPA, no further income is recognized on the same on 
accrual basis. The interest income which gets derecognized gets recognized 
again only on actual receipt basis. 

  e) Interest on advances to the trusts is recognized on accrual basis in terms of the 
provisions of the relevant trust deed/offer document. However, Interest on 
advances to the trusts which remains outstanding for a period exceeding 180 days 
and/or NAV of SRs fall below 50% of FV of SRs is derecognized and the same gets 
recognized again only on actual receipts basis on recovery in accordance with the 
RBI guidelines.

  f) Incen�ve Income is recognized on accrual basis as per the terms of contract. 
However, Incen�ve Income which remains outstanding for a period exceeding 180 
days is derecognized and the same gets recognized again only on actual receipts 
basis on recovery in accordance with the RBI guidelines.

  g) Other fee income ­ Any fee income other than (a) to (f) above (e.g. advisory fees, 
processing fees, commission income etc.) is recognized on accrual basis as per the 
terms of contract. 

  The above stated accoun�ng policies are in accordance with the guidelines and /or 
direc�ons issued by the RBI from �me to �me.

 4. Property, Plant & Equipment:
  Property, Plant & Equipment are carried at cost of acquisi�on less accumulated 

deprecia�on. The cost of Property, Plant & Equipment includes non­refundable taxes, 
du�es, freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisi�on and installa�on 
of the respec�ve assets.

  Property, Plant & Equipment are reviewed for impairment in terms of Accoun�ng 
Standard 28 “Impairment of Assets” and necessary provision for impairment loss, if 
any, is made. The same is reviewed at each repor�ng date. 
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 5. Deprecia�on: 
  a) Deprecia�on is provided on the straight­line method using useful life prescribed in 

Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

  b) Individual assets cos�ng less than `5,000/­ are depreciated in full in the year of 
acquisi�on.

  c) Deprecia�on is calculated on a pro­rata basis from the date on which the asset is 
put to use �ll the date the assets are sold or disposed or �ll the date of the financial 
statements, as the case may be.

  d) Intangible assets are amor�zed over their es�mated useful life on a straight line 
basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the company for its use.

 6. Investments:
  a) Investments in Security Receipts (SR) held by the company are aggregated for the 

purpose of arriving at a net deprecia�on or apprecia�on of the investment value. 
Average of latest range of ra�ngs obtained from credit ra�ng agencies is 
considered for the NAV of the investment. Net deprecia�on, if any is provided for 
and net apprecia�on, if any, is ignored based on valua�on Guidelines/ Direc�ons 
issued by RBI from �me to �me.

  b) Investments in Financial Assets and in Security Receipts of Trusts have been 
classified as Non­Current Assets as the resolu�on period exceeds 12 months and 
as it is difficult to precisely ascertain the period of recovery.  

  c) Financials Assets acquired on the books of the Company are classified under 
Standard Assets, Sub­Standard Assets, Doub�ul Assets and Loss Assets as per 
applicable RBI Guidelines/Direc�ons. Income recogni�on and provisioning norms 
on each of the above categories are applied as per the aforesaid RBI 
Guidelines/Direc�ons.

 7. Leases:
  Leases where the lessor effec�vely retains substan�ally all the risks and benefits of 

ownership of the leased assets are classified as opera�ng leases. Opera�ng lease 
payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss on a 
straight­line basis over the lease term in accordance with AS 19. 

 8. Employees Benefits:
  a) Short­Term Benefits:
   Short term employee benefits are expensed out in the period in which employees 

render their services.

  b) Post Employment Benefits:
   • Gratuity:
    The Company has an obliga�on towards gratuity, defined benefit re�rement 

plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides a lumpsum payment to 
vested employees at re�rement, death while in employment or on termina�on 
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of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable to each 
completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. Ves�ng occurs 
upon comple�on of five years of service. The company has obtained insurance 
policies with the Life Insurance Corpora�on of India (LIC) and makes an annual 
contribu�on to LIC for amounts no�fied by LIC. The company accounts for 
gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent external actuarial 
valua�on carried out at the end of the year using the projected unit credit 
method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss in the period in which they arise.

   • Other Long­Term Benefits ­ Compensated Absences
    The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to 

certain rules. The employees are en�tled to accumulate leave subject to certain 
limits for future encashment / availment. The Company makes provision for 
compensated absences based on an independent actuarial valua�on carried 
out at the end of the year under projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains / 
losses are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

 9. Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of the Trusts:
  The expenses incurred on behalf of the trusts are shown as recoverable from the trust 

in the balance sheet under the head “Advances to Trusts”. These expenses are 
reimbursable to the Company as per terms of the respec�ve trust deed/offer 
document.  

 10. Provision for Advances to Trusts
  The Company has made provision for the value of advances given to trusts which have 

remained outstanding for a period exceeding three years as at the Balance Sheet date 
for all the live trust whereas 100% provision were made on advance to trust where 
trust has completed Max resolu�on period as per RBI.

 11. Expenses incurred not resul�ng in acquisi�on of Financial Assets: 
  Acquisi�on related expenses with respect to valua�on, due diligence and bidding fees 

rela�ng to the financial assets, which do not materialize into acquisi�on, are expensed 
out in the year in which it is incurred. 

 12. Earnings Per Share:
  Basic: 
  In arriving at the basic earnings per share, the Company's net profit a�er tax, 

computed in terms of the Indian GAAP is divided by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding on the last day of the repor�ng period. 

  Diluted: 
  The number of shares used in compu�ng diluted earnings per share comprises the 

weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the 

INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

16th Annual Report, 2023­24 71



conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares. Dilu�ve poten�al equity shares are 
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. 

 13. Taxes on Income:

  a) Current Tax:
   The current charge for income tax is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax 

regula�ons applicable to the company.

  b)   Deferred Tax:
   Deferred Tax resul�ng from “�ming differences” between taxable and accoun�ng 

income that originate in one year and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent years is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or 
substan�vely enacted as on the balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is 
recognized, subject to considera�on of prudence and is carried forward only to the 
extent that there is a reasonable/virtual certainty, as the case may be, that the 
asset will be realized in future.

 14. Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es and con�ngent assets:
  Provisions are recognized for liabili�es that can be measured only by using a 

substan�al degree of es�ma�on if:

  a) The Company has a present obliga�on as a result of a past event,

  b) A probable ou�low of resources is expected to se�le the obliga�on, and

  c) The amount of the obliga�on can be reliably es�mated.

  A Con�ngent Liability is disclosed in case of:

  a) A present obliga�on arising from past events, when it is not probable that an 
ou�low of resources will be required to se�le the obliga�on,

  b) A present obliga�on when no reliable es�mate is possible,

  c) A possible obliga�on arising from past events where the probability of ou�low of 
resources is not remote.

  Con�ngent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.
  Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es and con�ngent assets are reviewed at each Balance 

Sheet date.

 15. Cash & Cash Equivalents: 
  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, balances in current accounts, fixed deposits 

with banks with maturi�es upto three months and fixed deposits with banks with 
sweep in facility which can be encashed by the Company at any point of �me. 

 16. Cash Flow Statement:
  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is 

adjusted for the effects of transac�ons of a non­cash nature, any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future opera�ng cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with inves�ng or financing cash flows. 
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 17. Prior Period Items:
  Prior period items are the incomes or expenses which arise in the current financial 

year as a result of errors or omissions in the prepara�on of the financial statements of 
earlier financial years.

 18. Impairment of Assets:
  An asset is considered as impaired in accordance with Accoun�ng Standard 28 on 

Impairment of Assets when at the balance sheet date there are indica�ons of 
impairment and the carrying amount of asset, or where applicable the cash genera�ng 
unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the 
asset's net selling price and value in use). The carrying amount is reduced to the 
recoverable amount and the reduc�on is recognized as an impairment loss in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

  When there is indica�on that an impairment loss recognized for an asset (other than a 
revalued asset) in earlier accoun�ng periods no longer exists or may have decreased, 
such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to 
the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In 
case of revalued assets such reversal is not recognized.

 19. Borrowing Costs:
  Borrowing costs that are a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of qualifying 

assets, as defined in Accoun�ng Standard 16 on Borrowing Costs, are capitalized as 
part of the cost of the asset upto the date when the asset is ready for its intended use. 
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

 20. Segment Repor�ng:
  The Company is primarily in a single segment i.e. in the business of asset 

reconstruc�on and securi�za�on services. The Company iden�fies primary segments 
based on the dominant source, nature and returns, the internal organiza�on and 
management structure.
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NOTE 2: SHARE CAPITAL

  Par�culars                                        March 31, 2024                                    March 31, 2023

   No. of shares ` in Lakh No. of shares ` in Lakh    

 Authorised    

 Equity Shares of ` 10/­ each  10,00,00,000   10,000.00   10,00,00,000   10,000.00     

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up    

 Equity Shares of ` 10/­ each  10,00,00,000   10,000.00   10,00,00,000   10,000.00 

    

  Total  10,00,00,000   10,000.00   10,00,00,000   10,000.00     

 Notes:    

 a) Reconcilia�on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year        

  Par�culars                                        March 31, 2024                                    March 31, 2023

   No. of shares ` in Lakh No. of shares ` in Lakh

 At the beginning of the year  10,00,00,000   10,000.00   10,00,00,000   10,000.00 

 Issued during the year  ­     ­     ­     ­   

 Bought back during the year  ­     ­     ­     ­   

 Outstanding at the end of the year  10,00,00,000   10,000.00   10,00,00,000   10,000.00 

    

 b) Statement showing list of the shareholders holding shares more than 5%    

  Name of Shareholder                                         March 31, 2024                                   March 31, 2023

   No. of Shares held % of Holding  No. of Shares held % of Holding

 Punjab Na�onal Bank  2,09,00,000   20.90   2,09,00,000   20.90 

 Small Industries Development 

 Bank of India   1,50,00,000  15.00  1,50,00,000  15.00

 SIDBI Venture Capital Limited  1,10,00,000  11.00  1,10,00,000  11.00

 Bank of Baroda   1,40,00,000  14.00  1,40,00,000  14.00

 Union Bank of India  80,00,000  8.00  80,00,000  8.00

 Punjab & Sind Bank  50,00,000  5.00  50,00,000  5.00

 Life Insurance Corpora�on of India  90,00,000  9.00  90,00,000  9.00

  Total  8,29,00,000    8,29,00,000  
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

 c) Details of shares held by the Promoters         

 As at 31 March 2024    

 Punjab Na�onal Bank  2,09,00,000   ­     2,09,00,000   ­   

 Small Industries Development 

 Bank of India   1,50,00,000   ­     1,50,00,000   ­   

 SIDBI Venture Capital Limited  1,10,00,000   ­     1,10,00,000   ­   

 Bank of Baroda   1,40,00,000   ­     1,40,00,000   ­             

 As at 31 March 2023    

 Punjab Na�onal Bank  2,09,00,000   ­     2,09,00,000   ­   

 Small Industries Development 

 Bank of India   1,50,00,000   ­     1,50,00,000   ­   

 SIDBI Venture Capital Limited  1,10,00,000   ­     1,10,00,000   ­   

 Bank of Baroda   1,40,00,000   ­     1,40,00,000   ­   

  

 As per records of the company, including the register of shareholders/members and other declara�ons 

received from shareholders  regarding beneficiary interest, the above shareholding represents both legal 

and beneficial ownership of shares.    

     

 d) Terms/rights a�ached to equity shares    

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having  a par value of ̀  10 per share. Each holder of equity 

shares is en�tled  to one vote per share and to receive dividend thereon. The dividend, proposed by the 

Board of Directors, is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng. In the 

event of  liquida�on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be en�tled to receive remaining 

assets of the Company, a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts. The distribu�on will be in propor�on 

to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.         

     

NOTE 3: RESERVES AND SURPLUS  

 Surplus (Statement of Profit and Loss):  As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

 Balance as per last Financial Statements  2,031.61 1,490.71

 Add: Net profit for the current year  936.67 540.90

    2,968.28 2,031.61

 Par�culars 

 Par�culars 

 Par�culars 
No. of 

shares at the 
beginning of 

the year 

 Par�culars 
No. of 

shares at the 
beginning of 

the year 

Change 
during the 

year 

Change 
during the 

year 

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year 

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year 

Change 
during the 

year 

Change 
during the 

year 

(` in Lakh)
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       As at 31.03.2024     As at 31.03.2023

NOTE 4: LONG TERM PROVISIONS

 Provision for Employee Benefits:  

 Compensated Absences      ­      ­ 

 Others:  

 Provision for Tax      ­      ­   

       ­      ­

NOTE 5: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS  

 Unsecured:  

 Loans and advances from related par�es:  

 Advance from Trusts      ­      ­      

       ­      ­      

NOTE 6: TRADE PAYABLES   

 Trade Payables(Undisputed):  

 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises      ­      ­   

 Others      40.25  72.67

      40.25  72.67 

 Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

 As on 31­03­24

 (i) MSME ­ ­ ­ ­  ­ ­

 (ii) Others 40.25 ­ ­ ­  ­ 40.25

 (iii) Disputed dues­MSME ­ ­ ­ ­  ­ ­

 (iv) Disputed dues­Others ­ ­ ­ ­  ­ ­

  40.25 ­ ­ ­  ­ 40.25

 As on 31­03­23

 (i) MSME ­ ­ ­ ­  ­ ­

 (ii) Others 72.67 ­ ­ ­  ­ 72.67

 (iii) Disputed dues­MSME ­ ­ ­ ­  ­ ­

 (iv) Disputed dues­Others ­ ­ ­ ­  ­ ­

  72.67 ­ ­ ­  ­ 72.67

NOTE 7: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES     

 Other Payables:  

 Statutory Liabili�es      3.04    4.77    

 Refundable EMD Deposits     ­  ­

       3.04    4.77    

   

NOTE 8: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS   

 Provision for Employee Benefits:  

 Compensated Absences      ­      ­

 Others:  

 Provision for Tax      ­      ­      

       ­      ­

Par�culars Unbilled
Less than

1 year
1­2 years 2­3 years

More than 
3 years Total

Par�culars Unbilled
Less than

1 year
1­2 years 2­3 years

More than 
3 years Total

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 10: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Trade Investments (A)  ­     ­     ­     ­     ­     ­      ­   
        
Other Investments                          
Investments (Quoted)  ­     ­     ­     ­     ­     ­      ­   
Investments in SR of Trusts 
(Unquoted):        
 ISARC 12/2010­11 Trust 69780 69780  100  100  100   100   69.78   69.78 
 ISARC 13/2010­11 Trust 11211 11211  100  100  1   1   0.11   0.11 
 ISARC 14/2010­11 Trust 53109 53109  100  100  1   1   0.53   0.53 
 ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 Trust 3450 3450  15  15  606   606   20.91   20.91 
 ISARC Allahabad Bank II/2012­13 
 Trust 10617 10617  20  20 ­ 120 ­ 12.74 
 ISARC Axis 1/2009­10 Trust 2500 2500  100  100  0   1,000   0.00   25.00 
 ISARC Axis 2/2010­11 Trust 28900 28900  100  100  572   572   165.31   165.31 
 ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust        
 Series II 25500 25500  100  100  150   150   38.25   38.25 
 Series III 59000 59000  100  100  527   527   310.93   310.93 
          349.18   349.18 
        
 ISARC Axis 4/2015­16 Trust 164 164  100  100  1   1   0.00   0.00 
 ISARC Axis 5/2015­16 Trust 54973 54973  100  100 378 409 207.80 224.84 
 ISARC BOB 1/2009­10 Trust 54557 54557  100  100  1   1   0.55   0.55 
 ISARC BOI 1/2010­11 Trust 23038 23038  100  100  ­     ­ ­    ­
 ISARC BOI 2/2015­16 Trust 40000 40000  100  100  ­     ­   ­     ­
 ISARC Canara Bank­I/2013­14 Trust 104682 104682  5  5 671 926 702.42 969.36 
 ISARC CBI 1/2010­11 Trust 3102 3102  50  50  1,000   1,000   31.02   31.02 
 ISARC CBI II / 2012­13 Trust 10213 10213  100  100  537   537   54.84   54.84 
 ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust 10215 10215  15   15   ­     ­ ­     ­
 ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust 12435 12435  15   15 84 1,000 10.45 124.35
 ISARC FA 03 I/2011­12 Trust 7000 7000  100  100  ­ 957   ­ 66.99 
 ISARC FA 16 I/2011­12 Trust 25385 25385  100  100 574 584 145.71 148.25 
 ISARC FA 27 I/2012­13 Trust 18000 18000  50  50  1,000   1,000   180.00   180.00 
 ISARC FA 41 I/2011­12 Trust 27921 27921  10  10  317   317   88.51   88.51 
 ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust 44000 44000  100  100  0   0   0.00   0.00 
 ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust 14500 14500  100  100  ­   0   ­   0.00 
 ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust 81 81  100  100  1   1   0.00   0.00 
 ISARC FA 8 II/2012­13 Trust 13100 13100  100  100  ­     ­     ­     ­   
 ISARC GPIL/2014­15 Trust 875 875  5  5  1,000   1,000   8.75   8.75 
 ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust 22379 22379  5  5 69 797 15.38 178.36
 ISARC IU/2011­12 Trust 42100 42100  100  100  1,000   1,000   421.00   421.00 
 ISARC MFPMPL/2011­12 Trust 20200 20200  100  100  ­     ­     ­     ­   
 ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust 5001 5001  5   5   970   1,000 48.51   50.01 
 ISARC Print 7C/2010­11 Trust 11300 11300  100  100  ­     ­   ­     ­ 
 ISARC RCPPL/2014­15 Trust 70732 70732  100   100   0   1   0.06   0.58 
 ISARC SBI 1/2015­16 Trust 107800 107800  100   100   0   0   0.00   0.00 

 Par�culars

No. of SRs 
as at March 31

2024 2023

Extent of 
Holding (%) as 

at March 31

SR Paid up
Value as at
March 31

Amount
as at March 31

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

(` in Lakh)
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NOTE 10: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (CONTD….)

 ISARC SCB 1/2015­16 Trust 43108 43108  100   100   0   0   0.00   0.00 
 ISARC SIDBI 1/2009­10 Trust 357 357  5  5  395   395   1.41   1.41 
 ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust        
  Class B        
   Scheme A 4183 4183  5   5   1   1   0.04   0.04 
   Scheme B 1055 1055  15   15   0   0   0.00   0.00 
           0.04   0.04 
        
 ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust 96105 96105  15   15   808   907  776.53   871.67 
 ISARC Syndicate Bank III/2016­17  13725 13725  15   15   ­     ­   ­     ­ 
 Trust 
 ISARC Transrail Structures & 
 Towers/2012­13 Trust 1295 1295  5  5  ­     ­   ­     ­ 
 ISARC UBI 1/2009­10 Trust        
  Class B 4154 4154  5  5  1,000   1,000   41.54   41.54 
 ISARC UBI 2/2009­10 Trust 9192 9192  100  100  ­ 601   ­   55.24 
 ISARC UBI 3/2009­10 Trust 4038 4038  5  5  867   943   35.01 35.01  
 ISARC UCO 1/2010­11 Trust 29275 29275  100  100  625   625   182.97   182.97 
 ISARC Yes Bank I­2012 13 Trust 28500 28500  100  100  0   695   0.14   0.14         
          3,558.44 4,353.99  
Provision for:        
 Diminu�on in Value of Security       106.21 163.43 
 Receipts 
 Security Receipts       2,750.57 3,336.56
Total Other Investments                  701.66 854.00          

INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(` in Lakh)

 Par�culars

No. of SRs 
as at March 31

2024 2023

Extent of 
Holding (%) as 

at March 31

SR Paid up
Value as at
March 31

Amount
as at March 31

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

   As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

 Movement of Provision for

  (i) Diminu�on in Value of Security Receipts

  Opening Balance 163.43 170.42

  Add: During the year ­ 100.00

  Less: Reversal of provision made in earlier years 

  which is no longer required (57.22)  (106.98)

  Less: Reversal of provision on a/c of write off during the year ­ ­

  Closing Balance as on year end 106.21   163.43

  (ii) Security Receipts        

  Opening Balance 3,336.56   3,771.71

  Add: During the year ­     50.01 

  Less: Reversal of provision made in earlier years 

  which is no longer required (313.75)  (86.12)

  Less: Reversal of provision on a/c of write off during the year (272.23)  (399.04)

  Closing Balance 2,750.57   3,336.56 

 Notes:

  a) 'SR' stands for Security Receipts.

  b) SR are recorded net of redemp�on amount.        
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

   As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
NOTE 11:  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)                
 Deferred Tax Assets (on account of �ming difference):        
  Provision for Employee Benefits 4.99 2.96
  Deprecia�on 1.77 1.86
  Provision for Write off of SR's/Advance/other Receivable from Trusts 144.90 189.17
   151.66 193.98 
NOTE 12: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES       
 Unsecured, considered good, unless specified otherwise:   
 Loans and advances to related par�es:   
  Advance to Trusts 208.60 435.34
  Less: Provision for Advance to Trusts (201.21) (266.86)
   7.39 168.47
 Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision for Taxes): 
  Unsecured, considered good 144.02 208.96
  Income Tax/TDS carried forward 27.07 27.07
   178.48 404.51
 Movement of Provision for
  (i) Advance to Trusts
  Opening Balance 266.86 257.72
  Add: During the year 107.25 24.29
  Less: Reversal of provision made in earlier years 
  which is no longer required                  (162.28) (4.63)
  Less: Reversal of provision on a/c of write off during the year (10.62) (10.52)
  Closing Balance as on year end                 201.21 266.86 

NOTE 13: OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS    
 Other Bank Balances:   
  Fixed Deposits with Banks having maturity of period   
  more than 12 months 564.92 642.00
 Security Deposits:
  Unsecured, considered good 11.36 0.25
   576.28 642.25
NOTE 14: TRADE RECEIVABLES    
 Unsecured, undisputed ,considered good :   
  Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they   ­     ­   
  are due for payment     
  Others 22.55 131.94
   22.55 131.94
 Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule   
 As on 31­03­24

 (i) Undisputed Trade Receivables ­ 22.55 ­ ­ ­ 22.55
 considered good

 (ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables ­ ­ ­ ­ ­ ­
 considered doub�ul

 (iii) Disputed Trade Receivables ­ ­ ­ ­ ­ ­
 considered good

 (iv) Disputed Trade Receivables ­ ­ ­ ­ ­ ­
 considered doub�ul

  ­ 22.55 ­ ­ ­ 22.55

Par�culars Unbilled
Less than
6 months

6 month ­
1­2 years

1­2 years
More than 

3 years Total

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

 As on 31­03­24

   As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

NOTE 15: CASH AND BANK BALANCES       

 Cash and Cash Equivalents*:   

 Balances with banks in:   

  Current Account 0.88 1.69

  Fixed Deposits 3,408.75 3,610.23

   3,409.63 3,611.92

 Cash on hand 0.02 0.00

 Other Bank Balances:

  Fixed Deposits with Banks having maturity of more than

  3 months but less than 12 months 7,499.55 5,891.16

  More than 12 Months # ­ ­

   10,909.20 9,503.08 

 * Cash and Cash Equivalents includes Fixed Deposits with banks, which can be withdrawn by the 

Company at any point of �me without prior no�ce or penalty on the principal.       

 # Fixed deposit maturing for more than 12 months disclosed seperately under Note No 13 Other 

Non­Current Assets.   

    

NOTE 16: SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES     

 Other Loans and Advances:   

 Prepaid Expenses:   

  Contribu�on to Gratuity Fund ­ 2.33

  Others 6.08 4.41

 Taxes Receivable:

  GST Credit 12.70 15.88

  Management Fees Reversed ­ ­

 Advance to:

  Vendors ­ 0.03

   18.78 22.66

NOTE 17: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS       

 Unsecured, considered good, unless specified otherwise:   

  Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits 442.56 299.25

  Redemp�on Amount Receivable ­ 43.54

   442.56 342.79 

(` in Lakh)

 (i) Undisputed Trade Receivables ­ 131.94 ­ ­ ­ 131.94
 considered good

 (ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables ­ ­ ­ ­ ­ ­
 considered doub�ul

 (iii) Disputed Trade Receivables ­ ­ ­ ­ ­ ­
 considered good

 (iv) Disputed Trade Receivables ­ ­ ­ ­ ­ ­
 considered doub�ul

  ­ 131.94 ­ ­ ­ 131.94

Par�culars Unbilled
Less than
6 months

6 month ­
1­2 years

1­2 years
More than 

3 years Total
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

   Year Ended Year Ended

   31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

NOTE 18: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS       

 Management Fees 157.59 342.70

 Upside Income 7.96  229.56

 Others:

  Incen�ves 81.90 3.91

  Commission Income ­ 2.61

   247.44 578.78

NOTE 19: OTHER INCOME    

 Interest on:   

  Fixed Deposits 769.37  562.10

  Advances to Trusts 63.52  15.18

  Interest on Refund of Income Tax 3.67 ­

 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.37 0.04

 Sundry Balances Wri�en Back 0.09 0.05

 Reversal of Provision:

  Write Back of Provision for Security Receipts                           585.99 435.15

  Write Back of Provision for Diminu�on In Value of Security Receipts 57.22 6.98 

  Write Back of Provision for Advance to trusts 65.65  ­

  Write Back of Provision GST Recoverable on Reversed Management Fees 14.99 49.09

   1,560.87 1,068.59    

NOTE 20: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES    

 Salary & S�pend ­ Direct Contract (Refer Note 24) 97.79 56.97

 Employer's Contribu�on to MLWF 0.00 0.00

 Deputa�on Charges 88.65  189.56

 Contractual Staff Expenses 65.34 46.24

 Provision for Compensated Absences ­ 0.04

 Contribu�on to Gratuity Fund 2.33  (0.87)

 Staff Welfare Expenses 4.00  3.53

   258.11 295.46

NOTE 21: OTHER EXPENSES       

 Provision for:   

  Security Receipts ­ ­

  Diminu�on In Value of Security Receipts ­ ­

  Advances to Trusts ­ 9.14

 Writeoff ­ Security Receipts 272.23 399.04

 Writeoff ­ Advances to Trusts 10.91 14.30

 Writeoff ­ GST Recoverable on Reversed Management Fees ­ 4.94

 Adver�sement Expenses 0.46 2.81

 Communica�on Expenses 1.26 0.67

 Conveyance Expenses 1.51 1.38

 CSR Expenditure 7.97 ­

 Directors' Si�ng Fees 25.35 9.00

 Electricity Charges 1.33 ­

 Goods and Service Tax Expenses 34.18 31.50

(` in Lakh)

16th Annual Report, 2023­24

India SME Asset Reconstruc�on Company Limited

82



NOTE 21: OTHER EXPENSES (CONTD….)

 Housekeeping Expenses 2.45 ­

 Insurance 1.61  2.84

 Loss on sale of Fixed Assets ­ 0.69

 Membership & Subscrip�on 2.48 2.56

 Postage & Courier 0.44 0.36

 Prin�ng & Sta�onery 2.68 1.74

 Fund Raising Expenses 3.50

 Professional Fees 34.80 32.45

 Rates and Taxes 0.03 0.05

 Rent 61.69 72.48

 Repairs & Maintenance:

  Premises 0.23 ­

  Others 4.34  1.85

 So�ware Expenses 5.10  2.81

 Traveling Expenses 0.18 1.56

 Vehicle Expenses 1.21 1.74

 Sundry balance wri�en off 1.15 1.40

 Miscellaneous Expenses 3.84 2.57

   480.91 597.87 

NOTE 22.1: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION        

                Auditor's Remunera�on excluding Goods and Service Tax (GST):   

                (Included in Professional Fees in Note 21)   

                        Audit Fees  0.50   0.50 

                        Tax Audit Fees  0.20   0.20 

 Others(Cer�fica�on Fees/Review) 0.25 0.35

   0.95 1.05 

NOTE 22.2:  OPERATING LEASE EXPENSES        

 The minimum lease rental payments to be made in respect of office premises are as follows:

    

 Lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss:                             61.69 72.48

 Within one year 53.70 80.66

 A�er one year but not more than five years 50.88 ­

 More than five years ­ ­

   166.27 153.13

 Note:

 Lease Rental payable within one year includes office space alloted by SIDBI in Kolkata at an agreed 

monthly rent as per the le�er given by SIDBI. In accordance with the same the Company has given the 

disclosure of lease rentals payable within next one year on the assump�on that the company will 

con�nue to occupy the said premises for full financial year 2024­25.

 

INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(` in Lakh)

    Year Ended Year Ended
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 23: EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE       

                Numerator: Profit A�er Tax 936.67 540.90

 Denominator: Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares            10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000

 Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (Rs.) 0.94  0.54

    

NOTE 24: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 Valua�on in respect of Gratuity has not been carried out by an independent actuary, as at the Balance 

Sheet date, as there were no employees on company payroll.

NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE      

 A Name of Related Par�es:     

 I Key Management Personnel: Shri Amitabh Misra (MD & CEO)­ w.e.f 6­12­2023

   Shri Sunil Mirashi (MD & CEO)­ ceased w.e.f 1­12­2023

   Shri K. Prakash (Chief Financial Officer)

   Smt Ketki Muzumdar (CS and Compliance Officer)

 II Significant Influence: Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI)  

   SIDBI Venture Capital Limited  

   Punjab Na�onal Bank  

   Bank of Baroda  

   ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust  

   ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust  

   ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 Trust  

   ISARC Syndicate Bank III/2016­17 Trust  

   ISARC Axis 5/2015­16 Trust  

   ISARC BOI 2/2015­16 Trust  

   ISARC SCB 1/2015­16 Trust  

   ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust  

   ISARC SBI 1/2015­16 Trust  

   ISARC Axis 4/2015­16 Trust  

   ISARC RCPPL/2014­15 Trust  

   ISARC GPIL/2014­15 Trust  

   ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  

   ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust  

   ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust  

   ISARC Allahabad Bank II/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC FA 8 II/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC CBI II/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC Yes Bank I/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC Transrail Structures & Towers/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC FA 27 I/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC FA 30 I/2012­13 Trust  

   ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust  

    Year Ended Year Ended
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(` in Lakh)
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NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTD….)             

   ISARC FA 03 I/2011­12 Trust  

   ISARC FA 16 I/2011­12 Trust  

   ISARC IU/2011­12 Trust  

   ISARC MFPMPL/2011­12 Trust  

   ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust  

   ISARC FA 41 I/2011­12 Trust  

   ISARC 12/2010­11 Trust  

   ISARC 13/2010­11 Trust  

   ISARC 14/2010­11 Trust  

   ISARC Print 7C/2010­11 Trust  

   ISARC CBI 1/2010­11 Trust  

   ISARC Axis 2/2010­11 Trust  

   ISARC BOI 1/2010­11 Trust  

   ISARC UCO 1/2010­11 Trust  

   ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust  

   ISARC BOB 1/2009­10 Trust  

   ISARC Axis 1/2009­10 Trust  

   ISARC UBI 2/2009­10 Trust  

   ISARC UBI 3/2009­10 Trust  

   ISARC UBI 1/2009­10 Trust  

   ISARC SIDBI 1/2009­10 Trust 

 B Related Party Transac�ons:     

 I Payments to Key Managerial Personnel:
 1) Remunera�on:  
 a) Mr. Sunil Mirashi  34.19 18.75
 b) Ms. Ketki Muzumdar  9.97 8.87
    44.15 27.62 

 II Transac�ons with Par�es under Significant Influence:     
 1) Income:     
 a) Management Fees (Gross) *  
  ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 TRUST 1.39 1.57
  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust ­ 1.50
  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust 9.32 11.41
  ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  ­ 3.58
  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust 63.60 65.38
  ISARC Syndicate Bank III/2016­17 Trust ­ 3.94
    74.32 87.38 
  * excluding GST amount  
 b) Management Fees reversed during the year  
   ISARC 12/2010­11 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 Trust 1.28 1.43

INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTD….) 
  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC CBI 1/2010­11 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC CBI II/2012­13 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust ­ 10.45
  ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC IU/2011­12 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  ­ 3.27
  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust ­ ­
    1.28 15.15
 c) Management Fees (Reversals received)  
  ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC Allahabad Bank II/2012­13 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC CBI II/2012­13 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust 74.43 ­
  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust ­ 67.72
  ISARC Axis 1/2009­10 Trust  ­ 3.62
  ISARC Axis 2/2010­11 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  ­ 0.58
  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust ­ 44.92
  ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust ­ 53.74
  ISARC IU/2011­12 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC Yes Bank I/2012­13 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  10.12 99.90
  ISARC Print 7C/2010­11 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC SCB 1/2015­16 Trust  ­ ­
    84.55 270.48
 d) Bad Debts Recovered  
  ISARC BOI 2/2015­16 Trust    ­     ­   
  ISARC Transrail Structures & Towers/2012­13 Trust   ­     ­   
     ­     ­   
 e) Yield on Security Receipts  
  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust   ­     ­   
  ISARC 14/2010­11 Trust    ­     ­   
    ­     ­   
 f) Upside Income  
  ISARC Axis 1/2009­10 Trust  1.57 156.05
  ISARC Syndicate Bank III/2016­17 Trust ­ 25.78
  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust ­ 2.17
  ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust ­ 5.05
  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust 6.39 ­
  ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust ­ 40.51
    7.96 229.56

(` in Lakh)

    Year Ended Year Ended
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTD….) 
 g) Incen�ves  
  ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust ­ 3.91
  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust 81.90 ­
    81.90 3.91
 h) Commission Income  
  ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust   ­ 2.61   
    ­ 2.61
 i) Interest on Advances (Gross)  
  ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 Trust 0.67 0.24
  ISARC Allahabad Bank II/2012­13 Trust 0.00 0.01
  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  1.81 1.67
  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust ­ 0.08
  ISARC CBI II/2012­13 Trust  0.15 0.09
  ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust 0.00 2.26
  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust 2.19 ­
  ISARC FA 03 I/2011­12 Trust 0.19 0.15
  ISARC FA 16 I/2011­12 Trust 0.00 0.00
  ISARC FA 27 I/2012­13 Trust 5.72 5.22
  ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust 0.00 0.06
  ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust 0.01 0.14
  ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust 0.71 0.58
  ISARC FA 8 II/2012­13 Trust  ­ ­
  ISARC GPIL/2014­15 Trust  1.51 1.32
  ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust 0.00 0.33
  ISARC IU/2011­12 Trust  2.60 2.54
  ISARC MFPMPL/2011­12 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  2.17 2.81
  ISARC RCPPL/2014­15 Trust 0.00 0.00
  ISARC SBI 1/2015­16 Trust  0.61 1.19
  ISARC SIDBI 1/2009­10 Trust 0.91 0.83
  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust 15.18 15.42
  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust 0.93 3.70
  ISARC Syndicate Bank III/2016­17 Trust ­ 0.06
  ISARC Transrail Structures & Towers/2012­13 Trust 0.00 0.09
  ISARC Yes Bank I/2012­13 Trust ­ 0.00
    35.39 38.80 
 j) Interest on Advances reversed during the year  
  ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 Trust 0.61 0.22
  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  1.63 1.13
  ISARC CBI II/2012­13 Trust  0.14 0.08
  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust ­ 2.03
  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC FA 03 I/2011­12 Trust 0.17 0.13
  ISARC FA 16 I/2011­12 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC FA 27 I/2012­13 Trust 5.15 4.70
  ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

    Year Ended Year Ended
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTD….) 
  ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust 0.64 0.53
  ISARC GPIL/2014­15 Trust  1.36 1.19
  ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust 0.01 0.07
  ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC IU/2011­12 Trust  2.34 2.28
  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  ­ 2.53
  ISARC RCPPL/2014­15 Trust ­ 0.00
  ISARC SBI 1/2015­16 Trust  0.55 1.07
  ISARC SIDBI 1/2009­10 Trust 0.82 0.75
  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust ­ 13.32
  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC Yes Bank I/2012­13 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC Transrail Structures & Towers/2012­13 Trust 0.00 0.08
    13.42 30.11
 k) Interest on Advances Reversal Received  
  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  ­ 0.63
  ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust ­ 0.06
  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  8.60 4.41
  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust 28.73 0.90
  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust 4.22 ­
  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trus ­ 0.49
  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC FA 16 I/2011­12 Trust ­ ­
  ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust ­ ­
    41.55 6.49
 1) Interest on Fixed Deposit     
  Punjab Na�onal Bank  4.94 19.89
  Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) 124.36 64.04
  Bank of Baroda  136.66 101.01
    265.96 184.94
 2) Expenses:
 a) Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI):  
  Deputa�on Charges   88.65 189.56
  Rent  28.16 72.40
    116.81 261.95
  Note:  
  Deputa�on Charges above includes remunera�on paid to CEO and CFO.    

 3) Balances as at the year end  
 a) Outstanding Payables   
  Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) 30.54 62.53
    30.54 62.53
 b) Outstanding Receivables      
 i) Management Fees   
  ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust ­ 0.05
  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 TRUST 3.34 ­
  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust 15.64 17.41

    18.98 17.46

    Year Ended Year Ended
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTD….)

 ii) Interest on Advances   

  ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust ­ 0.00

  ISARC FA 16 I/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust ­ 0.00

  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust ­ 0.01

  ISARC Syndicate Bank III/2016­17 Trust ­ 0.04

  ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust 0.00 ­

  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  ­ ­

  ISARC RCPPL/2014­15 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC Allahabad Bank II/2012­13 Trust 0.00 0.00

  ISARC FA 16 I/2011­12 Trust 0.00 ­

  ISARC MFPMPL/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC Yes Bank I/2012­13 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC SBI 1/2015­16 Trust  ­ ­

  ISARC SIDBI 1/2009­10 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  0.00 ­

  ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 TRUST ­ ­

  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust 3.10 ­

  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 TRUST 0.44 ­

  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust 0.03 1.00

    3.57 1.05

 iii) Incen�ves/Commission   

  ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust   ­     ­   

  ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust   ­     ­   

    ­     ­      

 iv) Accrued Interest Receivable   

  Punjab Na�onal Bank  ­ 8.84

  Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) 107.47 57.63

  Bank of Baroda  91.61 57.36

    199.08 123.83

 4) Advances to Trusts   

  ISARC 12/2010­11 Trust  8.68 8.18

  ISARC 13/2010­11 Trust  0.21 ­

  ISARC 14/2010­11 Trust  1.21 1.48

  ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 Trust 7.93 2.99

  ISARC Allahabad Bank II/2012­13 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC Axis 1/2009­10 Trust  ­ ­

  ISARC Axis 2/2010­11 Trust  1.23 0.19

  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  16.56 13.54

  ISARC AXIS 4/2015­16 Trust 0.91 0.74

  ISARC Axis 5/2015­16 Trust  ­ 42.07

(` in Lakh)

    As at As at
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTD….)

  ISARC BOB 1/2009­10 Trust  14.03 22.67

  ISARC BOI 1/2010­11 Trust  0.27 0.12

  ISARC BOI 2/2015­16 Trust  0.61 0.61

  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust 2.70 ­

  ISARC CBI 1/2010­11 Trust  9.72 9.39

  ISARC CBI II/2012­13 Trust  1.46 1.00

  ISARC Dena Bank II/2015­16 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust ­ 24.69

  ISARC FA 03 I/2011­12 Trust ­ 1.42

  ISARC FA 16 I/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC FA 27 I/2012­13 Trust 29.41 55.86

  ISARC FA 30 I/2012­13 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC FA 41 I/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust ­ 0.28

  ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust 6.13 5.45

  ISARC FA 8 II/2012­13 Trust  ­ ­

  ISARC GPIL/2014­15 Trust  12.86 11.15

  ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust ­ 0.00

  ISARC IU/2011­12 Trust  21.84 21.37

  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  ­ 23.97

  ISARC Print 7C/2010­11 Trust ­ 0.14

  ISARC RCPPL/2014­15 Trust ­ 0.00

  ISARC SBI 1/2015­16 Trust  10.23 10.17

  ISARC SCB 1/2015­16 Trust  ­ 0.10

  ISARC SIDBI 1/2009­10 Trust 7.67 7.37

  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust 35.32 124.34

  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust ­ 18.84

  ISARC Syndicate Bank III/2016­17 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC Transrail Structures & Towers/2012­13 Trust ­ 0.08

  ISARC UBI 1/2009­10 Trust  15.84 15.28

  ISARC UBI 2/2009­10 Trust  ­ 8.40

  ISARC UBI 3/2009­10 Trust  ­ ­

  ISARC UCO 1/2010­11 Trust  3.76 3.43

  ISARC Yes Bank I/2012­13 Trust ­ ­

    208.60 435.34 

 5) Provision for Advances to Trusts:  

  ISARC 12/2010­11 Trust  8.68 7.22

  ISARC 13/2010­11 Trust  0.21 ­

  ISARC 14/2010­11 Trust  1.21 0.23

  ISARC ACBL I/2017­18 TRUST 0.54 0.12

  ISARC Axis 2/2010­11 Trust  1.23 ­

  ISARC Axis 3/2012­13 Trust  16.56 ­

    Year Ended Year Ended
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTD….)

  ISARC AXIS 4/2015­16 Trust 0.91 ­

  ISARC Axis 5/2015­16 Trust  ­ ­

  ISARC Axis 1/2009­10 Trust  ­ ­

  ISARC BOB 1/2009­10 Trust  14.03 18.08

  ISARC BOI 1/2010­11 Trust  0.27 ­

  ISARC BOI 2/2015­16 Trust  0.61 ­

  ISARC Canara Bank I/2013­14 Trust 2.70 ­

  ISARC CBI 1/2010­11 Trust  9.72 8.49

  ISARC CBI II/2012­13 Trust  1.46 ­

  ISARC Dena Bank III/2017­18 Trust ­ 10.21

  ISARC FA 03 I/2011­12 Trust ­ 0.09

  ISARC FA 54/002/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC FA 27 I/2012­13 Trust 29.41 21.79

  ISARC FA 63 I/2012­13 Trust 6.13 ­

  ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC GPIL/2014­15 Trust  12.86 6.41

  ISARC IU/2011­12 Trust  21.84 19.66

  ISARC OBC I/2014­15 Trust  ­ 17.23

  ISARC Print 7C/2010­11 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC SCB 1/2015­16 Trust  ­ ­

  ISARC SIDBI III/2017­18 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC Transrail Structures & Towers/2012­13 Trust ­ ­

  ISARC SIDBI 1/2009­10 Trust 7.67 5.07

  ISARC UBI 1/2009­10 Trust  15.84 13.85

  ISARC SBI 1/2015­16 Trust  10.23 9.07

  ISARC SIDBI 2/2009­10 Trust 35.32 120.04

  ISARC UCO 1/2010­11 Trust  3.76 2.26

  ISARC UBI 2/2009­10 Trust  ­ 7.03

    201.21 266.86

 6) Fixed Deposit Placed with Bank

  Punjab Na�onal Bank  ­ 261.65

  Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) 1,835.00 1,290.00

  Bank of Baroda  2,000.00 1,492.51

    3,835.00 3,044.16

 7) Security Receipts Wri�en off :   

  ISARC BOI 1/2010­11 Trust  ­ 200.21

  ISARC BOI 2/2015­16 Trust  ­ 0.00

  ISARC Print 7C/2010­11 Trust ­ 0.19

  ISARC RCPPL/2014­15 Trust ­ 0.71

  ISARC Transrail Structures & Towers/2012­13 Trust ­ 0.00

  ISARC UBI 2/2009­10 Trust  55.24 ­

  ISARC FA 03 I/2011­12 Trust 66.99 ­

  ISARC IDBI Bank II/2013­14 Trust 150.00 ­

  ISARC Yes Bank I/2012­13 Trust ­ 197.94

    272.23 399.04

    As at As at
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25:  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTD….)

 8) Advance to Trust wri�en off :  

  ISARC BOI 1/2010­11 Trust  ­ 11.05

  ISARC BOI 2/2015­16 Trust  ­ 0.24

  ISARC FA 6 III/2011­12 Trust ­ 1.27

  ISARC Print 7C/2010­11 Trust ­ 0.45

  ISARC UBI 2/2009­10 Trust  8.85 ­

  ISARC FA 03 I/2011­12 Trust 1.77 ­

  ISARC SCB 1/2015­16 Trust  ­ 0.46

  ISARC Transrail Structures & Towers/2012­13 Trust ­ 0.83

  ISARC Yes Bank I/2012­13 Trust ­ 0.00

    10.62 14.30

 9) GST on reversed Management Fees Wri�en Off :  

  ISARC BOI 1/2010­11 Trust   ­ 4.94   

    ­ 4.94

NOTE 26: SEGMENT REPORTING  
 Based on the guiding principles given in Accoun�ng Standard on Segment Repor�ng (AS­17) issued by 

the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India the Company’s primary business segment is rendering 
asset reconstruc�on and securi�za�on services. As the Company’s business ac�vity falls within a single 
primary business segment the disclosures required of AS­17 in this regard are not applicable.   

NOTE 27: ASSET CLASSIFICATION     
 The disclosures pursuant to the RBI No�fica�on No. RBI/2015­16/94/DNBR (PD) CC. No. 03 / SCRC/ 

26.03.001/2015­16 dtd. July 1, 2015 for Asset Classifica�on is as under:
 Loans for Reconstruc�on of Financial Assets:   
  Loss Asset   ­     ­
  Less: Financial Asset Wri�en Off  ­     ­   
    ­     ­

NOTE 28: In the opinion of the Board, current assets, loans & advances are stated approximately at value, which 
could be realized in the ordinary course of business. Provision for all known liabili�es is adequate and it 
is neither in excess of nor short of amounts reasonably necessary. 

NOTE 29: DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES         

 Informa�on in respect of micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such par�es have been 
iden�fied on the basis of informa�on available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the 
auditors. 

 The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act"). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as 
follows:

 Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and

 remaining unpaid as at year end  ­ ­

 Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and

 remaining unpaid as at year end  ­ ­

 Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,

 beyond the appointed day during the year ­ ­

 Interest paid, other than under Sec�on 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
 registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year ­ ­

    As at As at
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

 Interest paid, under Sec�on 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered

 under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year ­ ­

 Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED

 Act, for payments already made  ­ ­

 Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years ­ ­

    ­ ­

NOTE 30: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY    

 Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board of Directors to ensure that the Company 
spends in every financial year at least 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the 
three immediately preceding financial years on Corporate Social Responsibility. Accordingly, the 
Company has disbursed `7,96,607 (Previous Year ` Nil/­) towards Corporate Social Responsibility 
Ac�vi�es. In accordance with the ‘FAQ on Provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility under Sec�on 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereon’, issued by the Ins�tute of the Chartered 
Accountants of India, this amount has been recorded and disclosed as an appropria�on of profit in the 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.     

 (a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year `7,96,607/­ (including 
Previous Years unspent amount ` Nil ) (Previous Year ` Nil/­).

 (b) Statement on CSR Ac�vi�es:    

 Opening Balance  31.03 0.00 ­ ­

 Eligible Amount  ­ ­ ­ 7.97

 Amount disbursed  31.03 0.00 ­ 7.97

 Shor�all carried forward  0.00 ­ ­ ­

 Sanc�oned Amount  31.03 0.00 ­ 7.97

 Reason for shor�ul  undisbured amount NIL NIL NIL

 Nature of CSR Ac�vi�es  PMNRF PMNRF ­ SIDBI Swavalamban

       Founda�on  

 Details of Related Par�es 

 transac�on  NIL NIL NIL NIL

 Provision Created  NIL NIL NIL NIL 

NOTE 31: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)

 Appeal pending before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)    

 for F.Y. 2011­12 (A.Y. 2012­13) (refer Note (i) below)   19.73   19.73   

 Appeal pending before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)    

 for F.Y. 2014­15 (A.Y. 2015­16) (refer note (ii) below)   40.40   40.40    

 Appeal pending before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)    

 for F.Y. 2016­17 (A.Y. 2017­18) (refer note (iii) below)   0.20   0.20 

 Depua�on Charges (in Arrears) (refer note (iv) below)   Amount not Amount not
      ascertainable ascertainable

       60.33   60.33

    Year Ended Year Ended
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Par�culars FY 2020­21 FY 2021­22 FY 2023­24FY 2022­23

(` in Lakh)
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

 Note (i) 
 The Company has received an income tax demand of ̀ 19,73,166 for FY 2011­12 (P.Y. ̀ 19,73,166)  which 

is contested by the Company before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). Against the same the 
department has adjusted TDS amount of ̀ 19,67,266 (`19,67,266) as per the Income Tax Return filed by 
the Company i.e net demand outstanding `5,900. No provision is considered necessary for this  
demand as in the Company's view, duly supported by the counsel's opinion and reasoning of the 
Learned ITAT Mumbai "C" Bench, in the case of Trust's wherein the company is a Trustee,  the demand 
made is not sustainable.

 In addi�on to the demand of `5900, the assessment order having DIN 20121177096 and dated 28th 
Dec 2019 also men�ons that penalty proceedings u/s 271(1)(c) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 are ini�ated 
separately for furnishing inaccurate par�culars of income.

 Note (ii)    
 The Company has received an Income Tax Refund of ̀ 99,43,121 during FY 2020­21 for AY 2017­18 a�er 

adjus�ng Income Tax Demand for AY 2011­12 (`10), AY 2014­15 (`81,300), AY 15­16                  
(`5,34,542), AY 16­17 (`1,31,467).

 The company has received an Income Tax Refund of ̀ 12,88,580 during FY 2019­20 for AY 2010­11 a�er 
adjus�ng Income Tax Demand for AY 2015­16. No provision is considered necessary for this  demand as 
in the Company's view, duly supported by the counsel's opinion and reasoning of the Learned ITAT 
Mumbai "C" Bench, in the case of Trust's wherein the company is a Trustee,  the demand made is  not 
sustainable.

 Note (iii)    
 The Company has received a no�ce under Sec�on 272A(1)(d) of the Income Tax Act,1961 for AY 2017­

18 levying a penalty of `20,000 against which the company has filed an appeal. No provision is 
considered necessary as on in the view of the company, duly supported by the counsel's opinion, the 
demand made is  not sustainable.

 Note (iv)    
 Deputa�on Charges (Arrears): Revision in pay & allowances of SIDBI Officers is due from Nov.2022.   

SIDBI, as and when pay & allowances are revised, will raise invoice on ISARC towards salary arrears of  
SIDBI Officers who were on deputa�on during the period of arrears. However, no provision has been 
made, as the arrear amount is not ascertainable as of now.

     

     

     

    Year Ended Year Ended
    31.03.2024 31.03.2023
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 32:  Addi�onal Regulatory Disclosure under Division I­Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 (CONTD….)
 (ii) The Company does not have any Immovable Property whose �tle deeds are not held in the name of the Company.
 (iii) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been ini�ated or pending against the 

Company for holding any Benami property.
 (iv) The Company has not advanced any loans or advances in the nature of loans to specified persons viz. promoters, 

directors, KMPs, related par�es; which are repayable on demand or where the agreement does not specify any 
terms or period of repayment.

 (v) The Company has neither raised funds from issue of securi�es nor has if taken borrowings from banks and financial 
ins�tu�ons, hence no repor�ng is required as regards u�lisa�on of the same  for the specific purposes for which 
they were issued/taken.

 (vi) The Company has not obtained any borrowings from banks or financial ins�tu�ons on the basis of security of 
current assets.

 (vii) The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a 
willful defaulter at any �me during the financial year or a�er the end of repor�ng period but before the date when 
financial statements are approved.

 (viii) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign 
en��es (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

  (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or

  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.
 (ix) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (Funding Party) 

with the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the Company shall:
  (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or
  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.
 (x) The Company does not have any transac�ons with struck­off companies.
 (xi) The Company has not entered into any Scheme of Arrangements during the year or previous year, hence addi�onal 

disclosure is not applicable.
 (xii) The Company does not have any transac�on which is not recorded in the books of accounts but has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such 
as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

 (xiii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
 (xiv) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of sec�on 2 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restric�on on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
 (xv) The Company does not have any charges or sa�sfac�on which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of 

Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.

NOTE 33: As per the RBI Circular dated October 11, 2022 on revised frame­work for ARCs, the Company is required to 
achieve the Net Owned Fund (NOF) of R.200 crore by March 31, 2024 and Rs.300 crore by March 31, 2026. In 
line with RBI guideline, the Company will not undertake incremental business �ll it reaches the minimum 
required NOF. The Company is in the process of infusion of necessary addi�onal capital to comply with the 
regulatory requirement. The Company has kept the Reserve Bank of India informed in the ma�er, vide le�er 
dated 26th February, 2024. 

NOTE 34:  The figures of the previous year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever necessary.

   The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
 INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

 Sd/­ Sd/­
 Amitabh Misra Sandeep Welling
 Managing Director & CEO Independent Director
 DIN: 10370703 DIN: 00072457

 Sd/­ Sd/­
 K. Prakash Hari Shanker Sharma
 CFO Independent Director
  DIN: 07123442

 Mumbai, May 9, 2024
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INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE

Sponsors
Bank of Baroda

Bank of Baroda (Erstwhile Dena 
Bank before Merger)
Punjab Na�onal Bank (Erstwhile 
United Bank of India before 
Merger) 
Punjab Na�onal Bank
Punjab Na�onal Bank (Erstwhile 
Oriental Bank of Commerce 
before Merger) 
SIDBI

Total (A)
Non­Sponsors
UCO Bank
Axis Bank

Bank of India

Central Bank of India

Standard Chartered Bank

HDFC Bank

Canara Bank (Erstwhile 
Syndicate Bank Before Merger) 
Canara Bank

Indian Bank (Erstwhile Allahabad 
Bank Before Merger)

City Union Bank
ICICI Bank

Indian Overseas Bank

IDBI Bank Ltd.

Yes Bank Ltd.

Karnataka Bank Ltd

State Bank of India

Abhyudaya Co­opera�ve Bank 
Limited

Total (B)
Grand Total (A + B)

The following addi�onal disclosures have been made taking into account RBI Guidelines in this regard:      

a) Name and addresses of the banks from whom Financial Assets were acquired and the value at which such 
assets was acquired from each bank

Acquisi�on ValueSr. 
No.

Name of the Bank Address
As at 31.03.2023  During the year  As at 31.03.2024

Note: 81 accounts with an aggregate loan outstanding of ̀  198 crores (approx.) acquired from Industrial Investment Bank 
of India (IIBI) for  ̀  81/­ have not been included, as the same have been assigned to ISARC on a  nominal value, on the 
direc�on of Ministry of Finance, Government of India for recovery on commission basis.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Plot ­ C­26, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai ­ 400 051
Plot ­ C­26, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai ­ 400 051
Bhikhaji Cama Place, New Delhi

Bhikhaji Cama Place, New Delhi
Bhikhaji Cama Place, New Delhi

MSME Development Centre, Bandra Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai ­ 400 051

10, B T M Sarani, Kolkata ­ 700 001
Maker Tower–F, 13th Cuffe Parade,  
Mumbai ­ 400 005
Star house, BKC, Plot no. C­5, G ­ Block,  
Mumbai ­ 400 051
Chander Mukhi, Nariman Point,        
Mumbai ­ 400 021
23­25, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort,  
Mumbai ­ 400 001
HDFC Bank House, Lower Parel,
Mumbai ­ 400 013
Recovery Wing, Head Office, 112 J C Road, 
Bangalore ­ 560 002
Recovery Wing, Head Office, 112 J C Road, 
Bangalore ­ 560 002
254­260, Avvai Shanmugam Salai, Royape�ah, 
Chennai 600014, Tamil­Nadu, India

149, TSR Big Street, Kumbakonam ­ 612 001
ICICI Bank Towers, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra East, Mumbai ­ 400 054
Central Office, 763, Anna Salai,  
Chennai ­ 600 002
IDBI Tower, World Trade Center Complex, 
Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai ­ 400 005.
Discovery of India, Nehru Center, 9th floor, Dr. 
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai ­ 400 018
Corporate Office, Mahaveera Circle, Kankandy, 
Mangalore ­ 575 002
The Arcade, World Trade Centre Complex, 
Cuffe Parade, Mumbai – 400 005
K K Tower, Abhyudaya Bank Lane, Off. G D 
Ambekar Marg, Parel Village, 
Mumbai ­ 400 012

565.57

1,685.00

2,007.70

2,792.04
1,000.11

9,297.35

17,347.77

1,633.75
2,674.95

761.38
 

164.17

560.00

575.00

1,468.00

20,936.27

1,021.84

253.85
202.00

670.00

4,835.88

285.00

194.25

1,078.00

230.00

37,544.34
54,892.11

­                               

 ­                               

 ­                               

 ­                               
 ­                               

 ­                          

 ­   
                             

­                                
­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                
­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                

­                                

­                           

­                           
­

565.57

1,685.00

2,007.70

2,792.04
1,000.11

9,297.35

17,347.77

1,633.75
2,674.95

761.38
 

164.17

560.00

575.00

1,468.00

20,936.27

1,021.84

253.85
202.00

670.00

4,835.88

285.00

194.25

1,078.00

230.00

37,544.34
54,892.11

(` in Lakh)
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b) Dispersion of various Financial Assets Industry­wise and Sponsor­wise as on 31.03.2024       

Sr. 
No.

Sector
No. of Cases

Note: 81 accounts with an aggregate loan outstanding of ̀  198 crores (approx.) acquired from Industrial Investment Bank 
of India (IIBI) for ̀  81/­ have not been included, as the same have been assigned to ISARC on a  nominal value, on the 
direc�on of Ministry of Finance, Government of India for recovery on commission basis.

Chemical & Chemical Products

Electrical/ Electronic Equipment

Food & Food Products

Hotels

Hospital

Tex�les/Leather/footwear

Wood & Wood Products

Other Services

Pharmaceu�cal products

Industrial products

Machinery

Agro based products

Entertainment

Trading

Construc�on/Real estate

Consumer Products

Others

Sub Total (A)

Chemical & Chemical Products

Electrical/ Electronic Equipment

Food & Food Products

Hotels

Hospital

Tex�les/Leather/Footwear

Wood & Wood Products

Other Services

Pharmaceu�cal products

Industrial products

Machinery

Agro based products

Entertainment

Trading

Construc�on/Real estate

Consumer Products

Others

Sub Total (B)

Grand Total (A+B)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

Non­Sponsor

 Sponsor /
Non ­ Sponsor

CY PY

Acquisi�on Value 
(Amount in Lakhs)

CY PY

% of Total 
Acquisi�on Value

CY PY

4.55

 2.38

 7.67        

2.11        

0.59      

11.91            

­          

2.78        

4.10      

26.83            

­          

9.55      

14.41        

4.52        

4.31        

2.01        

2.28   

100.00 

       3.47        

0.04      

16.17        

5.62        

1.59      

17.46        

0.29        

7.63      

15.23        

5.17        

0.08        

1.85        

0.34        

2.50        

8.43        

0.77      

13.36   

100.00 

248.89                 

129.93                 

418.87                 

115.50                   

32.23                 

650.84                          

­                   

151.77                 

223.83              

1,465.68                          

­                   

521.97                 

787.24                 

246.72                 

235.41                 

109.81                 

124.93           

5,463.62 

             

1,713.07                   

19.81              

7,994.88              

2,779.41                 

784.00              

8,628.67                 

144.62              

3,771.46              

7,529.41              

2,555.36                   

37.59                 

915.02                 

167.10              

1,235.38              

4,168.88                 

382.49              

6,601.34         

49,428.49         

54,892.11

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

­

18

10

22

1

2

27

1

20

16

44

1

3

7

7

4

7

12

202

10

6

22

3

4

45

4

22

9

46

2

15

2

39

16

11

54

310

512

(` in Lakh)
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c) Details of the related par�es as per Accoun�ng Standard and Guidance Note issued by The Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) and the amounts due to and from them are same as Note 25.

d) Migra�on of Financial Assets from Standard to Non Performing: Nil

e) Value of Financial Assets acquired during the financial year 2023­24 either on its own or in the books of the Trusts:    

     (` in Lakhs)

  Sr. No.  Acquisi�on in the books of  F.Y. 2023­24 F.Y. 2022­23

  1 ISARC      ­     ­   

  2 Trusts       ­     ­   

    Total         ­     ­           

f) Value of Financial Assets realized during the financial year 2023­24    

  Sr. No.  Acquisi�on in the books of  F.Y. 2023­24 F.Y. 2022­23

  1 ISARC        ­     ­   

  2 Trusts*   7,668.81 2,165.51

    Total                   7,668.81  2,165.51

 * Amount aggrega�ng to ̀  Nil/­ (previous year ̀  49.98 lakh) realized from Financial Assets acquired from Industrial 
Investment Bank of India (IIBI) is not considered above as the same has been assigned to ISARC on the direc�on of 
Ministry of Finance, Government of India for recovery on commission basis.         

g) Value of Financial Assets outstanding for realiza�on as at the end of financial year 2023­24

    Par�culars  F.Y. 2023­24 F.Y.2022­23

 Total value (cumula�ve) of Financial Assets acquired **   54,892.11   54,892.11 

 Less: Value (cumula�ve) of Financial Assets realised ***  40,185.90 32,517.09

 Total value of Financial Assets outstanding for realisa�on  14,706.21 22,375.02

 ** 81 accounts with an aggregate loan outstanding of ̀  198 crores (approx.) acquired from Industrial Investment 
Bank of India (IIBI) for ̀  81/­ have not been included, as the same have been assigned to ISARC on a nominal value, 
on the direc�on of Ministry of Finance, Government of India for recovery on commission basis.         

 *** Total amount aggrega�ng to ` 2631.71 Lakh (previous year ` 2588.73 Lakh) realized from Financial Assets 
acquired from Industrial Investment Bank of India (IIBI) is not considered above as the same have been assigned to 
ISARC on the direc�on of Ministry of Finance, Government of India for recovery on commission basis.         

h) Value of Security Receipts redeemed par�ally and fully during the financial year 2023­24

  Sr. No.  Acquisi�on in the books of  F.Y. 2023­24 F.Y. 2022­23

  1 Value of Security Receipts redeemed par�ally  7,042.11 914.72

  2 Value of Security Receipts redeemed fully  63.70 667.29

    Total  7,105.81 1,582.01

i)  Value of Security Receipts pending for redemp�on as at the end of financial year 2023­24: ` 28201.77 Lakh 
(previous year: ̀  35579.82 Lakh)     

j) Value of Security Receipts which could not be redeemed as a result of non­realiza�on of the financial assets as per 
the policy formulated by the securi�za�on company or reconstruc�on company under paragraph 7(6)(ii) or 
7(6)(iii) of No�fica�on No. DNBS.2/CGM(CSM) ­ 2003 dtd. April 23, 2003 issued by Reserve Bank of India. :            ̀  
22815.90 Lakh (Previous Year : ̀  28800.29 Lakh)

k) Value of land and /or building acquired on ordinary course of business of reconstruc�on of assets: NIL     

l) Basis of valua�on of assets if the acquisi�on value of the assets is more than the Book Value (the value of the assets 
as declared by the seller bank in the auc�on): NIL     

m) The details of the assets disposed off (either by write off or by realisa�on) during the year at  discount of more than 
20% of valua�on as on the previous year end and the reasons thereof: NIL     
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n) The details of the assets where the value of the SRs has declined more than 20% below the acquisi�on value.: NIL 

o) As per Reserve Bank of India Guidelines, the Capital Adequacy Ra�o of the Company as at March 31, 2024 works 
out to 1333%(Previous Year: 802%)

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
 INDIA SME ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

 Sd/­ Sd/­
 Amitabh Misra Sandeep Welling
 Managing Director & CEO Independent Director
 DIN: 10370703 DIN: 00072457

 Sd/­ Sd/­
 K. Prakash Hari Shanker Sharma
 CFO Independent Director
  DIN: 07123442

 Mumbai, May 9, 2024






